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Avnet, Inc. markets, distributes and adds value to a wide variety of
electronic components, enterprise computer products and embedded
subsystems. Our Company provides cost-effective services and
solutions vital to more than 250 suppliers and 100,000 customers in

the technology industry. Through this premier market position, Avnet
offers a breadth and depth of capabilities that help our trading partners

around the world accelerate growth and realize cost efficiencies.

Avnet is Enabling Success from the Center of Technology™
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Avnet Drives Value...

— to our Customers by delivering distinctive services
and technology products that enhance their

business growth and profitability

— to our Suppliers by building efficient channels to
thousands of customers worldwide and offering

innovative services that accelerate their growth

- to our Employees by providing opportunities for
career development and sharing the rewards of

mutual success

— to our Shareholders by increasing the value of
their investment in Avnet through our focus on

profitable growth and return on capital

Our Company began the fiscal year in an enviable position:
lean, geographically balanced and financially strong with
resurgent spending in the markets we serve. During the
2001-2003 technology industry downturn, we dramatically
reduced costs and debt to create a high degree of operating
leverage and a healthy balance sheet. In FY04, revenue
growth met operating efficiency. Sales increased 13 percent,
or $1.2 billion, and operating income grew almost nine times
faster, at 116 percent. Asset productivity reached record highs
during the year as cash conversion cycle metrics improved
nearly 10 percent. Pro forma earnings per share more than

quadrupled. As we enter FY05, our operating leverage positions
us to continue growing earnings substantially faster than sales.

Globalization continued apace in FY04, with technology

companies seeking lower manufacturing costs and new markets

for their products. The shift toward Asia, in particular, has been
dramatic, and Avnet’s proactive expansion into the region that
began in 1995 is paying off. Our Company is one of the largest
distributors of electronic components in Asia, where sales for
Avnet Electronics Marketing were up 50 percent year over year.
The news from Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA) is
exciting as well. Avnet Electronics Marketing’s operating profit
in this region rose almost fivefold, and sales increased
approximately 23 percent. In the Americas, operating income
nearly doubled for our computer products group, Avnet
Technology Solutions, and its sales rose 11 percent. Overall,
Avnet Electronics Marketing grew revenue 18 percent and
Avnet Technology Solutions gained 7 percent. Avnet, with its
275-plus location, 68 country global footprint, is positioned

to rapidly adjust to regional shifts, providing global capabilities
with local support.

From a business mix perspective, in FY04 our higher margin
components operating group gained ground, bringing us to 58
percent components and 42 percent computer products. We
enjoy a substantial market share lead over most competitors in
both areas of expertise. The combining of our Avnet Computer
Marketing and Avnet Applied Computing operating groups into
Avnet Technology Solutions at the beginning of the fiscal year
is proving successful; we consolidated operations, increased
profit and grew our computer products business in aggregate.
Despite our strong market position, Avnet still represents

only 10 percent of the global distribution market for the
products we currently sell.

Avnet, Inc. FY04

($ in Billions)

$3.38

As demand for technology products resumes, we are selectively
hiring in critical front-line areas while furthering our robust
internal training and performance management programs.
Avnet has a global employee base and a culture that drives
value through profitable growth and operational excellence.

We are committed to continually strengthening our performance-
and values-based culture and, through our Driving Value
campaign, educating our people on the steps they can take to
help increase shareholder value. In FY04, gross profit per
employee improved 21 percent and operating income per
employee, excluding certain charges, shot up 132 percent.

Net operating profit after tax return on working capital more
than doubled over FY03 and reached 12.9 percent in the fourth
quarter. Return on total capital climbed steadily every quarter,
and we continue to make progress toward our goal of more
than 10 percent return on capital employed.
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* Excluding restructuring and other charges.
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Our achievements are laudable and our strategy and position
sound, but we will not rest. We aspire to set new quarterly
records in financial and productivity metrics as we strive to
reestablish pre-downturn peak performance levels. It is our
intent to grow the Company’s revenue faster than the
technology markets we serve and leverage the increase in
sales to grow earnings per share and return on capital faster
than revenue. We will take full advantage of the opportunities
our scale and scope afford us to enable our customers and
suppliers to succeed. We will continue to stress quality revenue
growth while improving expense and asset productivity, insisting
that all business decisions take into account the impact on
profit and the consumption of capital. We will focus on organic
growth, new business opportunities, operational excellence
and developing our people.

Though demand in many sectors of our industry is cyclical,
technology is intrinsic to the global economy and will remain an
important driver well into the future. Avnet and its stakeholders
benefit from the relative stability our balanced revenue portfolio
provides. We remain committed to capitalizing on our position
at the center of the technology supply chain to provide the
utmost value to our customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders. Thank you for your confidence in our Company.

(Hine

Roy Vallee
Chairman & CEO




2004 Annual Report

The technology market is a global one, a complex web of
electronic component and subassembly manufacturers, contract
manufacturers, original design and equipment manufacturers,
and logistics providers. Electronic product and design
processes, once vertically integrated within a corporation,
have been outsourced as companies focus on their core
competencies. Avnet Electronics Marketing brings critical
value to its customers through design chain and supply chain
expertise and established relationships in every segment of
the market and in every region of the world. We invite
customers to leverage our capabilities, knowledge and

global scale and scope to their advantage.

Avnet Electronics Marketing
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As companies maneuver their supply chains through regions
with differing languages, laws, logistics, time zones and partner
relationships, maintaining a steady flow of components to
manufacturing operations while avoiding unnecessary risk can
be daunting. Avnet Electronics Marketing aggregates forecasts
from customers and their trading partners and filters them
through our business, improving accuracy and vastly simplifying
their supply chains. Our just-in-time point-of-use programs
provide pinpoint accuracy for companies of all sizes. We

assist customers as they implement lean manufacturing
initiatives to reduce inventory. From in-plant stores to bonded
and vendor-managed inventory, we tailor materials management
programs to meet every customer’s requirements. We also
provide state-of-the-art, ISO-certified programming centers,
connector and cable assembly, motor and power modification
services, and other physical value-added services to help
customers make their operations more efficient.

When it comes to designing products, our total-systems
approach helps customers integrate suppliers’ technology.
Customers rely on Avnet Electronics Marketing field application

engineers (FAEs) to help them objectively analyze and choose
the best component solutions from among the vast array
offered by our suppliers. Seminars and training programs bring
customers and suppliers together for hands-on experience with
new technologies. FAEs integrate components from multiple
suppliers into reference and evaluation kits that solve real-world
problems. Online search tools allow customers to research
thousands of components to fill an entire bill of materials.

Avnet Electronics Marketing also offers demand creation
programs that extend our suppliers’ products into untapped
markets early in the design cycle. Our design services and
new product introduction teams identify and assist engineers
engaged in next-generation development. We establish
relationships with third-party design providers in all regions
to deliver advanced support in hardware design, embedded
software development, ASIC and FPGA design, and the
latest digital consumer and wireless technologies, including
LCD-TV, DVD-RW, MPS3, Bluetooth, WLAN, PMP and VolIP.
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In FY04, Avnet Electronics Marketing increased sales 18 percent
over FY03, to $5.89 billion. The year was one of accelerating
growth in the markets we serve and adherence to strict financial
discipline in managing our return on capital. In FY05, we will
maintain our commitment to regionally-run businesses, leverage
best practices and processes globally, and focus on process
improvement, business discipline and operational excellence.
It’s all part of our philosophy of providing the best customer
experience in the business. From design to production,

from engineering services to end-to-end global supply chain
management solutions, Avnet Electronics Marketing provides
Support Across the Board™ and Support Across the Globe™

for our customers and suppliers.

Avnet Electronics Marketing

($ in Billions)
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At Avnet Technology Solutions, we deliver the technology
solutions and information technology (IT) infrastructures that
successful companies rely on to drive efficient, cost-effective
businesses. We’ve built our organization around embedded
components, enterprise servers, storage, networking, software
and services and are dedicated to designing, developing and
deploying solutions tailored to our customers’ distinct and
often very complex needs.

Our technology sales and marketing organization provides
solutions worldwide through divisions focused on original
equipment manufacturers, independent software vendors,
system builders, system integrators, value-added resellers
and end-user customers. We are a cost-effective business
partner, providing ISO-certified integration, high-flex assembly,
technical, marketing and finance capabilities better and faster
than customers can do for themselves.

Avnet Technology Solutions

Forged at the beginning of FY04, Avnet Technology Solutions
brought together the best of former Company operating groups
Avnet Applied Computing and Avnet Computer Marketing.
Throughout the year, we streamlined our IT infrastructure and
consolidated our warehouses and integration centers in North
America and Europe, improving operations, realizing cost
savings and enhancing our ability to leverage our global

scope and scale. And, we did it without negatively impacting
service or sales — revenue for our aggregate computer
business was up 7 percent, to $4.35 billion.

Customers appreciate tools like Avnet FasTrac™, QuickSource™
and Channel Connection™ that help them configure pre-
certified solutions, automate order management and access

a wealth of business information to increase productivity and
reduce costs. They also welcome the opportunity to test-drive
our suppliers’ latest technology solutions in a hands-on
environment. Value-added resellers use IT Demo Central™ to
demonstrate software applications to their end-user customers,
and customers can take advantage of two new Storage
Enterprise Centers opened in FY04.

Our roster of franchised suppliers remains selective, and we
work hand-in-hand with the top one or two manufacturers

in each product category to develop innovative programs

that build efficient channels to market. In FY04, we provided
resellers with comprehensive education, training and
certification programs around the introduction of IBM’s i5

server products and helped customers align their offerings

with HP’s strategy and IT buying trends through our Market
Connection™ process. At their 2004 Global Distribution Meeting,
EIZO, one of the world’s leading manufacturers of LCD displays,
recognized our efforts in Europe with awards for sales growth,
market development and overall excellence in four countries.
And Intermec, a global provider of supply chain products,
services and systems, named Avnet Technology Solutions

its highest growth distributor.
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In FYO05, industry standard servers and standardized
components will become even more important to our
business. We are investing in people, processes and systems
to enhance Avnet’s leadership role in enterprise computing
and are expanding our base of independent software vendors to
broaden the solutions we offer customers. We plan to increase
our presence in Asia, where strong economic growth is driving
the need for IT solutions. We will further develop our technical
capabilities to connect our business partners to new
opportunities and help them lower costs, increase revenue
and expand market share. At Avnet Technology Solutions,

we are accelerating our customers’ and suppliers’ success.

Avnet Technology Solutions
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Avnet has evolved. For years, our Company focused on sales,
growing revenue, capturing market share and creating a global
footprint. We are now a multibillion-dollar organization with an
international presence. In January 2001, we launched a strategic
initiative, the Driving Value campaign, to realign our organization
to focus on more profitable growth through value-based
management. We have accomplished a paradigm shift,

moving from a company that measured profit as a percent

of sales to one that measures profit as a return on the capital
we employ.

As revenue growth reemerged in FY04, the impact of the
operating leverage we created as a result of the Driving Value
campaign became clear. A lower cost structure and recovery in
the end markets our customers serve drove a dramatic increase
in operating income. Net operating profit after tax return on
working capital (NOPAT/WC), excluding restructuring and other
charges, grew 672 basis points, to 10.6 percent, in FY04 as
operating margin and working capital productivity climbed.

In fact, operating margin almost doubled, up 91 percent, and
working capital turns improved 16 percent.

Avnet, Inc.
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* Excluding restructuring and other charges.

Avnet, Inc.
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Generating profitable growth is the primary measure of our
success, regardless of market conditions, global economic
conditions or Company size and structure. We are committed
to maintaining a balanced revenue portfolio. In FY05, we will
continue to drive value for our customers, suppliers, employees
and shareholders by aligning metrics, goals and compensation
using value-based management principles, capturing good
revenue, creating high-value services, streamlining our balance
sheet and capital structure, and managing risk effectively.
Productivity gains and working capital management are a
priority. We remain steadfast in pursuit of our vision, to be

the premier technology marketing, distribution and services
company, globally.

Avnet, Inc.
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** Working capital turns are computed using annualized sales divided by average working
capital. Average working capital equals inventory plus trade accounts receivable (including
receivables sold under the A/R securitization program) less accounts payable.
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A formal notice of the meeting and a proxy
statement will be mailed to each shareholder
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Comprehensive investment information
regarding Avnet, Inc., including current and
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presentations, a calendar of events, corporate
governance and other information, is available
at www.ir.avnet.com.
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Lawrence W. Clarkson
Ehud Houminer
James A. Lawrence
Frank R. Noonan

Ray M. Robinson
Gary L. Tooker

Special Note: Avnet welcomes Frank R. Noonan

to the board and thanks former member
Frederic Salerno for 10 years of dedicated
service to our Company.

Senior Management
David Birk

General Counsel & Chief of Staff
Andy Bryant

President, Avnet Logistics
Steve Church

Senior Vice President,

Organizational & Business Development
Harley Feldberg

President, Avnet Electronics Marketing
Rick Hamada

President, Avnet Technology Solutions
Ed Kamins

Chief Information Officer
Al Maag

Chief Communications Officer
Janice Miller

Vice President, Organizational

Development & Human Resources
Ray Sadowski

Chief Financial Officer
Roy Vallee

Chief Executive Officer

Fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 GAAP to Non-GAAP Reconciliation

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS):
As reported
Restructuring and other charges (pre-tax)

Adjusted to exclude restructuring and other charges

NET INCOME (LOSS)
As reported
Restructuring and other charges (after-tax)

Adjusted to exclude restructuring and other charges

($ in Thousands)
FYO04

$ 202,247
55,618
$ 257,865

$ 72,897
52,752
$ 125,649

FYO03 FY02
$ 12,729 $ (2,985)
106,765 79,623
§ 119,494 s 76,638
$ (46,116) $ (84,436)
73,902 62,084
$ 27,786 $ (22,352)

See Notes 7 and 17 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements appearing in Item 15 of the Form 10-K for discussion of the debt
extinguishment costs and restructuring and other charges noted above. Net income (loss) information is before the cumulative effect of change

in accounting principal in FY02.

Q3 FY04, Q2 FY04, Q1 FY04, Q3 FY03 and Q2 FY03 Earnings (Loss) Per Share

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:
As reported
Impact of restructuring and other charges

Adjusted to exclude restructuring and other charges

Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP

Q3 FY04 Q2 FY04 Q1 FY04 Q3 FY03 Q2 FY03
$ 022 $ 0.07 $ (0.09) $ 0.1 $ (0.49)
0.12 0.14 0.18 0.07 0.55

$ 0.34 $ 0.1

$ 0.09 $ 0.08 $ 0.06

See Notes 7 and 17 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements appearing in Item 15 of the Form 10-K for discussion of the
debt extinguishment costs and restructuring and other charges noted above.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to the financial condition, results of
operations and business of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Avnet” or the “Company”’). You can find many of
these statements by looking for words like “believes,” ‘“‘expects,” ‘‘anticipates,” ‘“‘estimates” or similar
expressions in this Report or in documents incorporated by reference in this Report.

LEINT3 LEINT3

These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties. Factors
that may cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the forward-looking statements
include the following:

* A technology industry down-cycle, particularly in the semiconductor sector, would adversely affect
Avnet’s expected operating results.

o Competitive pressures among distributors of electronic components and computer products may
increase significantly through entry of new competitors or otherwise.

» General economic or business conditions, domestic and foreign, may be less favorable than manage-
ment expected, resulting in lower sales and declining profitability which can, in turn, impact the
Company’s credit ratings, debt covenant compliance and liquidity, as well as the Company’s ability to
maintain existing unsecured financing or to obtain new financing.

 Legislative or regulatory changes may adversely affect the businesses in which Avnet is engaged.
e Adverse changes may occur in the securities markets.

e Changes in interest rates and currency fluctuations may reduce Avnet’s profit margins.

» Avnet may be adversely affected by the allocation of products by suppliers.

Because forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, actual results may differ
materially from those expressed or implied by them. Management cautions you not to place undue reliance on
these statements, which speak only as of the date of this Report.

Avnet does not undertake any obligation to update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.



PART I

Item 1. Business

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, together with its subsidiaries, (the “Company” or
“Avnet”) is one of the world’s largest industrial distributors, based on sales, of electronic components,
enterprise network and computer equipment and embedded subsystems with sales in fiscal 2004 of
$10.24 billion. Avnet creates a vital link in the technology supply chain that connects over 250 of the world’s
leading electronic component and computer product manufacturers and software developers as a single source
for multiple products for a global customer base of over 100,000 original equipment manufacturers
(“OEMs”), contract manufacturers, original design manufacturers, value-added resellers (“VARs”) and end-
users. Avnet distributes electronic components, computer products and software as received from its suppliers
or with assembly or other value added by Avnet. Additionally, Avnet provides engineering design, materials
management and logistics services, system integration and configuration, and supply chain advisory services.

Organizational Structure

During the first quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company combined its Avnet Computer Marketing (“CM”)
and Avnet Applied Computing (“AC”) operating groups into one computer products and services business
called Avnet Technology Solutions (“T'S’’). This combination was part of the Company’s continued efforts to
strengthen its market leadership position, streamline its business and further leverage cost synergies resulting
from the combination. In light of the similarities of the logistics operations and related functions of CM and
AC, the consolidation of certain of the units’ operating facilities, equipment and processes has yielded cost
savings while also stimulating new market opportunities for the combined group.

As a result of the formation of TS, Avnet Electronics Marketing (“EM”) and TS represented the
Company’s two operating groups beginning in fiscal 2004, both having operations in each of the three major
economic regions of the world: the Americas; Europe, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”); and Asia.
Each operating group has its own management team that is led by a group president and includes senior
executives within the operating group that manage the accounting and finance, facilities, warehousing and
other administrative tasks for each operating group as a whole. Each operating group also has distinct financial
reporting that is evaluated at the corporate level and on which operating decisions and strategic planning for
the Company as a whole are made. Divisions exist within each operating group that serve primarily as sales
and marketing units to further streamline the sales and marketing efforts within each operating group and to
enhance each operating group’s ability to work with its customers and suppliers, generally along more specific
product lines or based upon geography. However, each division relies heavily on the support services that are
provided centrally within each operating group and centralized support at the corporate level.

A summary of each operating group, and the divisions included in each group, is discussed below. Further
financial information by operating group and geography are also contained in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements appearing in Item 15 of this Report.

Avnet Electronics Marketing (“EM”)

EM markets and sells semiconductors and interconnect, passive and electromechanical devices
(“IP&E”), and also offers an array of value-added services to its customers, such as supply-chain
management, engineering design, inventory replenishment systems, connector and cable assembly and
semiconductor programming. EM markets and sells its products and services to a diverse customer base
spread across end-markets including communications, computer hardware and peripheral, industrial and
manufacturing, medical equipment, military and aerospace.

EM markets and sells products on behalf of over 250 of the world’s leading electronic component
manufacturers. Suppliers of components to EM include Analog Devices, Freescale Semiconductor, Infineon
Technologies, Intel, Maxim/Dallas, National Semiconductor, ON Semiconductor, Philips Components,
Texas Instruments and Xilinx. EM sells to multinational, regional and local OEMs and contract manufactur-
ers including Alcatel, Benchmark, Celestica, General Electric, Hon Hai Precision, Jabil, Plexus, Sanmina-
SCI, Siemens and Solectron.



EM is Avnet’s largest operating group, with sales in fiscal 2004 of $5.89 billion, representing 57.5% of
Avnet’s consolidated sales. EM is comprised of three regional operations: EM Americas, which had sales of
$2.46 billion in fiscal 2004, or 24.0% of Avnet’s consolidated sales; EM EMEA, which had sales of
$2.13 billion in fiscal 2004, or 20.8% of Avnet’s consolidated sales; and EM Asia, which had sales of
$1.30 billion in fiscal 2004, or 12.7% of Avnet’s consolidated sales.

Each of EM’s sales and marketing divisions is generally focused on a specific customer segment,
particular product lines provided by a limited group of suppliers or on a specific geography. The various
divisions collectively focus on the transactional needs of the traditional global electronic components
distribution market, and thereby offer one of the industry’s broadest line cards and convenient one-stop
shopping with an emphasis on responsiveness, engineering support, on-time delivery and quality. Certain
specialty services are made available to the individual divisions through common support service units.

EM'’s division structure is as follows:

Americas

e EM Americas distributes semiconductors, electronic connectors, electronic wire and cable, other
passive and electromechanical products and interconnect assemblies used in assembling and manufac-
turing of electronic products. EM Americas addresses the needs of its customers and suppliers through
focused channels to service small to medium customers, global customers, defense and aerospace
customers, emerging customers and contract manufacturers. EM Americas also provides an array of
value-added services including engineering design, supply chain services, hi-reliability processing,
parametric assembly, cable assembly, fan assembly, taping, reeling and component modification.

EMEA

e In EMEA, EM goes to market with seven sales and marketing divisions: EBV and WBC, based in
Germany, which specialize in demand creation and logistics services for select semiconductor
suppliers; Silica, based in the United Kingdom, a semiconductor marketer; Avnet Time, based in the
United Kingdom, a marketer of IP&E components; Avnet Integrated Material Services, based in the
United Kingdom, a provider of supply chain solutions, material management and warehousing services;
BFI-Optilas, based in France, a marketer of specialty components and devices; Avnet Israel, based in
Tel Aviv, a value-added electronic components distributor in Israel; and Avnet Kopp, a distributor of
electronic components. EM EMEA does business in over 35 western and eastern European countries,
South Africa, Turkey, Egypt and Israel.

Asia

« EM Asia is a value-added distributor of electronic components and services in 15 Asian countries,
Australia and New Zealand. All of EM Asia’s operations have access to the products and services
provided by EM globally. Avnet goes to market in China with three focused sales and marketing
divisions — Sunrise, ChinaTronic and Avnet Technology.

Avnet Technology Solutions (“TS”)

TS markets and sells mid- to high-end servers, data storage, software and networking solutions, and the
services required to implement these solutions, to the VAR channel and enterprise computing customers. TS
also focuses on the worldwide OEM market for computing technology, system integrators and non-PC OEMs
that require embedded systems and solutions including engineering, product prototyping, integration and other
value-added services.

TS is a leading partner for system vendors such as IBM and HP. Other key suppliers TS serves include
Advanced Micro Devices, Cisco Systems, EIZO, EMC, Intel, Micron, Oracle and Storage Technologies. TS
markets and sells its products and services to the VAR channel and enterprise computing customers, which
include ASAP Software, Blue River Systems, GE Medical Systems, Intel, Key Information Systems, MA
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Laboratories, McKesson Information Solutions, Sirius Computer Systems, Software Spectrum and Venture
Systemsource.

Sales for TS were $4.35 billion in fiscal 2004, representing 42.5% of Avnet’s consolidated sales. TS’s fiscal
2004 global sales consisted of the following regional results: TS America sales of $2.95 billion, or 28.8% of
Avnet’s consolidated sales; TS EMEA sales of $1.25 billion, or 12.2% of Avnet’s consolidated sales; and TS
Asia sales of $156.2 million, or 1.5% of Avnet’s consolidated sales.

As a global technology sales and marketing organization, TS has dedicated sales and marketing divisions
focused on specific customer segments including OEMs, independent software vendors, system builders,
system integrators, VARs and end-user customers. TS’s select line card strategy enables an exceptional level
of attention to the needs of its suppliers.

TS consists of the following primary divisions:

» Avnet Partner Solutions (formerly named Avnet Hall-Mark) is a value-added distributor of enterprise
computer systems, software, storage, networking solutions and services. Avnet Partner Solutions is one
of the industry’s leading value-added distributors in the enterprise computing space in support of a
limited line card of the foremost systems, storage and software manufacturers. Avnet Partner Solutions
provides those manufacturers’ products to VARs, along with complementary value-added services.
Avnet Partner Solutions also provides logistics, financial, marketing, sales and technical services,
including in-house engineering support, complex systems integration and configuration services. Avnet
Partner Solutions has locations in North America in addition to European offices in Austria, Belgium,
the Czech Republic, Germany, Hungary, Italy, Poland, Switzerland and the United Kingdom. Avnet
Partner Solutions also operates a division in Australia, serving resellers and end-users.

« Avnet Enterprise Solutions provides end-user customers with information technology solutions includ-
ing hardware, software, maintenance, financial and professional services. Avnet Enterprise Solutions is
a solutions integrator specializing in network solutions. Avnet Enterprise Solutions leverages its unique
suite of technical and financial strategies and services to minimize risk, maximize flexibility and
optimize the use of capital on IT infrastructures, and thus bring value to businesses intent on managing
their total cost of technology infrastructure — from the data center, through the network, to the
desktop. Avnet Enterprise Solutions provides services to customers primarily in North America.

» Applied Computing Components serves the needs of manufacturers of general-purpose computers by
providing them with the latest technologies such as microprocessors, DRAM modules and
motherboards. Applied Computing Components does business in all three of the global geographic
regions: Americas, EMEA and Asia.

e Applied Computing Solutions focuses on the unique needs of non-PC OEMs and system
builders/integrators. Applied Computing Solutions provides technical design, integration, marketing
and financing to developers of application specific computer solutions in the non-PC market place.
Examples of these types of customers are OEMs in the medical, telecommunications, industrial control
and digital creation market segments. Applied Computing Solutions does business in all three of the
global geographic regions: Americas, EMEA and Asia.

» Applied Visual and Data Solutions concentrates on specialized displays, network products and storage
solutions, while targeting primarily VARs and system integrators with its wireless switch and wireless
standalone solutions. Applied Visual and Data Solutions does business in eight European countries.

Foreign Operations

As noted in the operating group discussions, Avnet’s operations are deployed globally with significant
operations in the three major regions of the world: the Americas, EMEA, and Asia. Historically, Avnet’s
operations in the Americas region (primarily the United States) have contributed the largest percentage of
consolidated sales. During fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, the percentage of the Company’s sales in the Americas
has been 53%, 56% and 60%, respectively. The EMEA region’s contribution to Avnet’s consolidated sales has
remained relatively stable in the 32% to 33% range over the same three-year period. The Asia region has been
continuously growing as a percentage of consolidated sales with 14%, 11% and 8%, respectively, of
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consolidated sales being generated in that region during fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002. This growth in Asia is
indicative of a worldwide industrial trend and is a result of Avnet’s continued investment into this rapidly
growing region, particularly in the Peoples’ Republic of China. While management expects the Asia region to
continue to grow, both in volume of business and as a percentage of the Company’s global business in the
future, the rate of growth is not expected to remain at the same robust percentages exhibited in the past three
to four years.

Avnet’s foreign operations are subject to a variety of risks including potential restrictions on transfers of
funds due to statutory or tax regulations, foreign currency fluctuations, import and export duties and
regulations, changing foreign tax laws and regulations, potential military conflicts, less flexible employee
contracts in the event of business downturns, and the burden and cost of compliance with foreign laws. The
most common of these risks is the Company’s exposure to foreign currency fluctuations, which are hedged
regularly as part of Avnet’s treasury and cash management operations. These risks are discussed further at
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk appearing in Item 7A of this Report. Addition-
ally, the specific impacts of foreign currency fluctuations, most notably the Euro, on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements are further discussed in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7 of this Report.

Acquisitions

Avnet has made no significant acquisitions in the past three fiscal years. Avnet historically pursued a
strategic acquisition program to grow its presence in world markets for electronic components and computer
products. This program was a significant factor in Avnet becoming one of the largest industrial distributors of
electronic components and computer equipment worldwide. While Avnet will continue to pursue strategic
acquisitions as part of its overall growth strategy, the limited number of potential acquisition targets has
changed the focus of the Company’s acquisition strategy to a relatively smaller scale, likely directed at
geographies where the Company is seeking to increase its scale and scope in certain markets where an
acquisition may be beneficial. Furthermore, the achievement of the Company’s current scale of operations has
allowed management, in recent years, to focus on its existing lines of business and the strategies necessary to
grow those businesses organically. This focus also allowed Avnet to expand its business globally coming out of
the recent economic and industry downturn and to capitalize on the current industry up-cycle by even further
expanding revenue growth globally. With these strategies in place, management currently does not anticipate
making any material acquisitions in the near term.

Major Products

One of Avnet’s competitive strengths is the breadth and quality of the suppliers whose products it
distributes. IBM represents the only supplier from which sales of its products exceed 10% of the Company’s
consolidated sales. During fiscal 2004, IBM products accounted for approximately 18.7% of the Company’s
sales. Listed in the table below are the major product categories and the Company’s approximate sales of each
during the past three fiscal years:

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Millions)
SemiconducCtors . .. ..v it $ 5,077.6 $4,819.1  $4,430.3
Computer products ..............o i, 4,242.5 3,457.8 3,475.3
CONNECIOTS .\ ottt ettt e e e e 442.8 376.3 385.0
Passives, electromechanical and other..................... 481.8 395.2 629.6

$10,244.7  $9,048.4  $8,920.2

As of July 3, 2004, the Company had over 275 locations worldwide, as well as a limited number of
instances where Avnet-owned product is stored in customer facilities. Many of these locations contain sales,
warehousing and administrative functions for multiple sales and marketing units. Avnet sells to customers in
68 countries.



Competition & Markets

Avnet is one of the world’s largest industrial distributors (based on sales) of electronic components and
computer products.

The electronic component and computer product industry continues to be extremely competitive and is
subject to rapid technological advances. The Company’s major competitors are Arrow Electronics, Inc.,
Future Electronics, Memec, Inc. and Agilysys, Inc. There are also certain smaller, specialized competitors
who focus upon one market or product or a particular sector. As a result of these factors, Avnet must remain
competitive in its pricing of goods and services.

Another key competitive factor in the electronic component and computer product distribution industry
as a whole is the need to carry a sufficient amount of inventory to meet rapid delivery requirements of
customers. However, to minimize its exposure related to valuation of inventory on hand, the majority of the
Company’s products are purchased pursuant to non-exclusive distributor agreements. These agreements
typically provide certain protections to the Company for product obsolescence and price erosion in the form of
rights of return and price protection. Furthermore, these agreements are generally cancelable upon 30 to
180 days notice and, in most cases, provide for inventory return privileges upon cancellation. In addition, the
Company enhances its competitive position by offering a variety of value-added services which entail the
performance of services and/or processes tailored to individual customer specifications and business needs
such as point of use replenishment, testing, assembly, supply chain management and materials management.

A key strength of the Company is the breadth and quality of the suppliers whose products it distributes.
Because of the number of Avnet’s suppliers, many customers can make all of their required purchases with
Avnet, rather than purchasing from several different vendors.

Seasonality

With the exception of a relatively minor impact on consolidated results from the growth in revenues in
the computer-related business (TS) during Avnet’s fiscal quarter ending in December, Avnet’s business is not
materially impacted by seasonality.

Number of Employees
At July 3, 2004, Avnet had approximately 9,900 employees.

Avnet Website

In addition to the information about Avnet and its subsidiaries contained in this Report, extensive
information about the Company can be found through our website located at www.avnet.com, including
information about our management team, products and services and our corporate governance practices.

The corporate governance information on our website includes the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines, the Code of Conduct and the charters for each of the committees of our Board of Directors. In
addition, amendments to the Code of Conduct, and waivers granted to our directors and executive officers
under the Code of Conduct, if any, will be posted in this area of our website. These documents can be accessed
at www.avnet.com under the “Investor Relations — Governance” caption. Printed versions of our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, our Code of Conduct and the charters for our Board committees can be obtained, free
of charge, by writing to the Company at: Avnet, Inc., 2211 South 47th Street, Phoenix, AZ 85034; Attn:
Corporate Secretary.

In addition, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those Reports, if any, filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as well as Section 16 filings made by any of the Company’s
executive officers or directors with respect to Avnet Common Stock, are available on the Company’s website
(www.avnet.com under the “Investor Relations — SEC Filings” caption) as soon as reasonably practicable
after the report is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

This information about Avnet’s website and its content is for information only and the content of the
Company’s website is not deemed to be incorporated by reference in this report or filed with the SEC.
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Item 2. Properties

At July 3, 2004, the Company owned and leased approximately 627,000 and 3,302,000 square feet of
space, respectively, of which approximately 52% is located in the United States. The following table
summarizes certain of the Company’s key facilities as of July 3, 2004:

Sq. Leased or

Location Footage Owned Primary Use
Phoenix, Arizona ... 176,000 Leased Corporate and EM headquarters
Tempe, Arizona .... 132,000 Leased TS headquarters
Chandler, Arizona .. 395,000 Owned EM warehousing and value-added operations
Phoenix, Arizona ... 122,000 Leased TS warehousing, integration and value-added operations
Grapevine, Texas ... 181,000 Leased @ EM warehousing and value-added operations
Poing, Germany .... 190,000 Leased EM warehousing and value-added operations

Tongeren, Belgium.. 167,000 Owned EM and TS warchousing and value-added operations

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As a result primarily of certain former manufacturing operations, Avnet may have liability under various
federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those governing pollution and exposure
to and the handling, storage and disposal of hazardous substances. For example, under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (“CERCLA”) and similar
state laws, Avnet may be liable for the costs of cleaning up environmental contamination on or from its current
or former properties, and at off-site locations where the Company disposed of wastes in the past. Such laws
may impose joint and several liability. Typically, however, the costs for cleanup at such sites are allocated
among potentially responsible parties (“PRPs”) based upon each party’s relative contribution to the
contamination, and other factors.

In May 1993, the Company and the former owners of a Company-owned site in Oxford, North Carolina
entered into a Settlement Agreement in which the former owners agreed to bear 100% of all costs associated
with investigation and cleanup of soils and sludges remaining on the site and 70% of all costs associated with
investigation and cleanup of groundwater. The Company agreed to be responsible for 30% of the groundwater
investigation and cleanup costs. In October 1993, the Company and the former owners entered into a Consent
Decree and Court Order with the Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) for the environmental
clean-up of the site, the cost of which, according to the EPA’s remedial investigation and feasibility study, was
estimated to be approximately $6.3 million, exclusive of the approximately $1.5 million in EPA past costs paid
by the PRPs. Based on current information, the Company does not anticipate its liability in the matter will be
material to its financial position, cash flow or results of operations.

In September 2002, the Company’s subsidiary, Sterling Electronics, Inc. (“Sterling”), was added as a
defendant in an existing lawsuit filed in the Superior Court of California, County of Los Angeles, by property
owners and residents in or near the San Gabriel Valley Superfund Site. This master case is a consolidation of
six different matters filed during the period from July 1997 through November 2001. Sterling once owned
92.46% of the capital stock of Phaostron, Inc., which has been named as a PRP for contamination at the site.
In March 2003, the court dismissed all six cases on technical grounds, but allowed the plaintiffs the
opportunity to properly serve newly-added industrial defendants, including Sterling, in any case not yet outside
the mandatory service period. In five of the six cases, the applicable service period has expired. Sterling,
therefore, cannot be re-added to those cases as a defendant. In the remaining case, the plaintiffs have until
November 30, 2004 to re-add Sterling as a defendant in the master case and properly perfect service of process
on Sterling. Those plaintiffs have not indicated a monetary amount sought in this matter. The Company
believes that Sterling has meritorious defenses to liability, and, although the ultimate outcome is uncertain,
based on current information, the Company does not believe that its liability for this matter, if any, will be
material to its financial position, cash flow or results of operations.

The Company is a PRP at a manufacturing site in Huguenot, New York currently under investigation by
the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (“NYSDEC”), which site the Company
owned from the mid-1960s until the early-1970s. The estimated cost of the first phase of the environmental
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clean-up (to remediate contaminated soils), is approximately $2.4 million based on a NYSDEC cost estimate.
The Company is currently engaged in litigation to apportion these costs among it and the current and former
owners and operators of the site. Based on current information, the Company does not anticipate its liability in
the matter will be material to its financial position, cash flow or results of operations.

Based on the information known to date, management believes that the Company has appropriately
accrued in its consolidated financial statements for its share of the costs associated with these environmental
clean-up sites.

The Company and/or its subsidiaries are also parties to various other legal proceedings arising from time
to time in the normal course of business. While litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, management
currently believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flow or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.



PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Market Price Per Share

The Company’s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange.
Quarterly market prices (as reported for the New York Stock Exchange composite transactions) for the last
two fiscal years were:

Fiscal 2004 2003
Quarters High Low High Low
R $18.82  $12.02 $21.95 $11.25
2 2260  16.85 14.75 5.55
B 2752 21.05 13.00 9.31
A 2692 20.78 14.53 10.24

The Company paid no dividends during fiscal 2004 or 2003 nor are any dividend payments currently
contemplated in the future.

Record Holders

As of August 28, 2004 there were approximately 5,154 holders of record of Avnet’s common stock.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table includes the Company’s monthly purchases of common stock during the fourth
quarter ended July 3, 2004:

Maximum Number (or

Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Total Shares Purchased as Value) of Shares That
Number of Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Shares Average Price Announced Plans or Under the Plans or
Period Purchased Paid Per Share Programs Programs
April coo 15,000 $25.16 — —
May...........c.o.oo... 25,000 22.33 — —
June ...l 20,000 22.75 — —

The purchases of Avnet common stock noted above were made on the open market to obtain shares for
purchase under the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. None of these purchases were made pursuant
to a publicly announced repurchase plan and the Company does not currently have a stock repurchase plan in
place.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data*
Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28, June 29, June 30,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(Millions, except for per share and ratio data)
Income:
Sales. ... $10,244.7 $9,048.4 $8,920.2 $12,814.0 $9,915.0
Gross profit . ... 1,364.9 1,215.0 1,222.8 (c) 1,865.5 (e) 1,444.8
Operating income (loss) ................... 202.2 (a) 12.7 (b) (3.0) (¢) 253.7 (e) 368.0 (f)
Income tax provision (benefit) .............. 25.5 (a) (33.3) (b) (36.4) (c) 87.2 (e) 121.1 (f)
Earnings (loss) . ..., 72.9 (a) (46.1) (b) (84.4) (c)(d) 0.1 (e) 162.6 (f)
Financial Position:
Working capital .......................... 1,839.0 1,820.0 1,928.7 1,177.4 2,368.7
Total assets ..............viriiiinennnn... 4,863.7 4,500.0 4,682.0 5,864.1 5,934.4
Long-term debt........................ ... 1,196.2 1,278.4 1,565.8 919.5 1,650.6
Shareholders” equity .. ............c.... .. 1,953.4 1,832.5 1,804.5 2,374.6 2,246.7
Per Share:
Basic earnings (loss) ............. ... ... .. 0.61 (a) (0.39) (b) (0.71) (c)(d) — (e) 1.52 (f)
Diluted earnings (loss) .................... 0.60 (a) (0.39) (b) (0.71) (c)(d) — (e) 1.50 (f)
Dividends............. ... ... ... ... .. — — 0.15 0.30 0.30
Book value............ ... ... ... . 16.21 15.33 15.11 20.15 19.88
Ratios:
Operating income (loss) margin on sales .. ... 2.0%(a) 0.1 %(b) — %(c) 2.0%(e) 3.7%(f)
Profit (loss) margin onsales................ 0.7%(a) (0.5)%(b) (0.9)%(c) (d) —%(e) 1.6%(f)
Return on equity.......... ... oot 4.3%(a) (2.6)%(b) (4.1)%(c) (d) —%(e) 8.1%(f)
Return on capital ......................... 3.9%(a) 0.5 %(b) (0.2)%(c) (d) 2.2%(e) 6.1%(f)
Quick . ... 1.3:1 1.4:1 1.2:1 0.7:1 1.1:1
Working capital ............. . ... . 2.1:1 2.4:1 2.5:1 1.5:1 2.2:1

Total debt to capital . ...................... 41.0% 44.4 % 47.4 % 48.3% 48.9%

* Income amounts are from continuing operations and net assets from discontinued operations have been
classified as current assets. All amounts prior to fiscal 2002 have been restated for the acquisition of Kent
Electronics Corporation, which has been accounted for using the “pooling-of-interests” method.

(a) Includes the impact of restructuring and other charges recorded in both the first and second quarters of
fiscal 2004 in connection with cost cutting initiatives and the previously announced combination of the
Avnet Computer Marketing (“CM”) and Avnet Applied Computing (“AC”) operating groups into one
operating group now called Avnet Technology Solutions. These charges amounted to $55.6 million (all of
which was included in operating expenses), $38.6 million after-tax and $0.32 per share on a diluted basis.
Fiscal 2004 results also include the impact of debt extinguishment costs associated with the Company’s
cash tender offers completed during the third quarter of fiscal 2004 for $273.4 million of the 774% Notes
due February 15, 2005. These debt extinguishment costs amounted to $16.4 million pre-tax, $14.2 million
after-tax and $0.12 per share on a diluted basis. The total impact of these charges recorded in fiscal 2004
amounted to $72.0 million pre-tax, $52.8 million after-tax and $0.44 per share on a diluted basis.

(b) Includes the impact of restructuring and other charges related to certain cost cutting initiatives instituted
during fiscal 2003, including severance costs, charges for consolidation of facilities and write-offs of
certain capitalized IT-related initiatives. These charges totaled $106.8 million pre-tax (all of which was
included in operating expenses), $65.7 million after-tax and $0.55 per share on a diluted basis. Fiscal
2003 results also include the impact of debt extinguishment costs associated with the Company’s cash
tender offers and repurchases completed during the third quarter of 2003 for $159.0 million of its
6.45% Notes due August 15, 2003 and $220.1 million of its 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003. These
debt extinguishment costs amounted to $13.5 million pre-tax, $8.2 million after tax and $0.07 per share
on a diluted basis. The total impact of the charges recorded in fiscal 2003 amounted to $120.3 million
pre-tax, $73.9 million after-tax and $0.62 per share on a diluted basis.
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()

(d)

(e)

()

Includes the impact of integration charges related to the write-down of certain assets acquired in the
fiscal 2001 acquisition of Kent, net of certain recoveries of previous write-downs and reserves, and other
restructuring charges taken in response to business conditions, including an impairment charge to
write-down certain investments in unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair value and
severance charges for workforce reductions announced during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. The net
restructuring and integration charges amounted to $79.6 million pre-tax ($21.6 million included in cost of
sales and $58.0 million included in operating expenses), $62.1 million after- tax and $0.52 per share on a
diluted basis.

The fiscal 2002 selected financial data excludes the impact of the Company’s adoption of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”),
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, on June 30, 2001, the first day of the Company’s fiscal 2002.
SFAS 142, which requires that ratable amortization of goodwill be replaced with periodic tests for
goodwill impairment, resulted in a transition impairment charge recorded by the Company of $580.5 mil-
lion, or $4.90 per share on a diluted basis for the year. This charge is reflected as a cumulative change in
accounting principle in the consolidated statements of operations.

Includes the impact of charges related to the acquisition and integration of Kent, which was accounted
for as a “pooling-of-interests,” and other integration, reorganization and cost cutting initiatives taken in
response to business conditions. The charges amounted to $327.5 million pre-tax ($80.6 million included
in cost of sales and $246.9 million included in operating expenses), $236.7 million after-tax and $1.99 per
share on a diluted basis.

Includes the impact of incremental charges associated with: (i) the integration of Marshall Industries,
Eurotronics B.V. and the SEI Macro Group into Avnet Electronics Marketing (“EM”), (ii) the
integration of JBA Computer Solutions into CM North America, (iii) the reorganization of EM Asia,
(iv) the reorganization of EM’s European operations including costs related to the consolidation of EM’s
European warehousing operations and (v) costs incurred in connection with certain litigation brought by
the Company. The total charges for fiscal 2000 amounted to $49.0 million pre-tax, $30.4 million after-tax
and $0.28 per share on a diluted basis.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For an understanding of Avnet and the significant factors that influenced the Company’s performance
during the past three fiscal years, the following discussion should be read in conjunction with the description of
the business appearing in Item 1 of this Report and the consolidated financial statements, including the related
notes, and other information appearing in Item 15 of this Report.

There are numerous references to the impact of foreign currency translation in this Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”). Over the past two
years, the U.S. Dollar has weakened significantly in comparison to most foreign currencies, especially the Euro
(which strengthened against the U.S. Dollar by approximately 14% from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004 and by
approximately 16% from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2003). When the weaker U.S. Dollar exchange rates of fiscal
2004 and 2003 are used to translate the results of operations of Avnet’s subsidiaries denominated in foreign
currencies, the resulting impact is an increase, in U.S. Dollars, of reported results.

In addition to disclosing financial results that are determined in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”), the Company also discloses pro forma or non-GAAP measures that may
exclude certain items. Management believes that providing this additional information is useful to the reader
to better assess and understand operating performance, especially when comparing results with previous
periods or forecasting performance for future periods. Management believes the pro forma measures also help
indicate underlying trends in the business. Management also uses pro forma information to establish
operational goals and, in some cases, for measuring performance for compensation purposes. However,
analysis of results and outlook on a pro forma or non-GAAP basis should be used as a complement to, and in
conjunction with, data presented in accordance with GAAP.

Results from Operations
Executive Summary

Fiscal 2004 was the year operating efficiencies, which Avnet has derived from its value-based manage-
ment initiatives and focus on operating costs over the past several years, combined with sales growth to drive a
dramatic increase in the Company’s profitability. The Company’s sales growth of 13.2% from fiscal 2003 to
fiscal 2004 resulted from increased sales in each of the Company’s operating groups (Avnet Electronics
Marketing, or “EM,” and Avnet Technology Solutions, or “TS’’) as well as across all three regions in which
Avnet does business (Americas; Europe, the Middle East and Africa, hereafter referred to as “EMEA”; and
Asia). Approximately one-third of this year-over-year sales growth is a result of the impact of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

During fiscal 2004, the electronic component and computer product industry emerged from the economic
and industry downturn that commenced after the Company’s second quarter of fiscal 2001. While the
downturn caused rapid sales declines in the second half of fiscal 2001 and in fiscal 2002, the Company’s top
line performance largely stabilized from that point forward until the beginning of fiscal 2004 in what remained
a relatively weak technology industry and economy as a whole. During the down-cycle, Avnet’s focus on
managing its operating costs resulted in the Company eliminating significant expense from its ongoing
operations. As a result, selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales were 10.8% in
fiscal 2004 as compared with 13.1% as recently as fiscal 2002. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of gross profit showed a more significant positive trend by dropping to 81.1% in fiscal 2004 as
compared with 95.5% in fiscal 2002. The operating expense reductions resulted primarily from the Company’s
ongoing cost reduction initiatives and recent restructuring efforts further discussed in this MD&A. The
Company similarly managed its working capital during this period with steady improvement in inventory turns,
days’ sales outstanding and payable days. This focus on managing working capital allowed the Company to
maximize its operating cash flow despite the downturn and to reduce its outstanding debt and related interest
expense substantially since fiscal 2001.

Within Avnet’s operating groups, EM generated increases in sales in fiscal 2004 of 18.1% over fiscal 2003.
EM, which markets and sells semiconductors as well as interconnect, passive and electromechanical devices
and radio frequency/microwave components, is the more cyclical of the Company’s two operating groups.
Therefore, the previous down-cycle, as well as the industry upturn that commenced in fiscal 2004, had a more
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significant impact on EM’s results of operations than on those of Avnet’s computer products operating group,
TS, where revenues increased by 7.2% from fiscal 2003 to fiscal 2004. EM’s revenues grew in fiscal 2004 in all
three regions, with the Asia/Pacific region leading the way with a $430.5 million increase in annual sales,
representing nearly 50% growth year-over-year. This growth in the Asia/Pacific region, especially in the
electronic component industry, is indicative of the ongoing trend for the past several years where this region
has continued to represent one of the Company’s most significant growth opportunities. Management believes
Avnet is well-positioned to capitalize on this growth based on its already established position in the Asia
region, and specifically in the Peoples’ Republic of China. As a result of this trend, the Asia/Pacific region
now accounts for 22.0% of EM’s global sales as compared with 17.4% in fiscal 2003. The fiscal 2004 growth in
TS’s sales was driven primarily by growth in the Americas region on strength of sales primarily in storage,
software and networking products and services. As a result of the more rapid growth in EM as compared with
TS, EM’s sales constituted 57.5% of Avnet’s consolidated sales, up from 55.1% in fiscal 2003 and 54.3% in
fiscal 2002.

Independent of future growth rates, operating efficiency and working capital management will remain a
key focus of Avnet’s overall value-based management initiatives and its efforts to continue growing
profitability and return on capital at a faster rate than growth in revenues.

As a distributor, it is difficult to forecast the material trends of the electronic component and computer
product industry, aside from some of the normal seasonality discussed herein, because Avnet does not typically
have material forward-looking information available from its customers and suppliers beyond approximately
three to four months of forecast information. As such, management relies on the publicly available
information published by certain industry groups and other related analyses in evaluating its business prospects
in the longer term.

Sales
The tables below provide a year-over-year summary of sales for the Company and its operating groups:

Three-Year Analysis of Sales: By Operating Group and Geography

Years Ended Percent Change
July 3, % of June 27, % of June 28, % of 2004 to 2003 to
2004 Total 2003 Total 2002 Total 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions)

Sales by Operating Group:

EM ... $ 58924  57.5% $4,988.4 55.1% $4,841.9  54.3% 18.1% 3.0%

TS 43523 425 4,060.0 44.9 4,078.3 457 7.2 (04)
$10,244.7 $9,048.4 $8,920.2 13.2 1.4

Sales by Geographic Area:

Americas ... i $ 5,409.6  52.8% $5,028.7 55.6% $5,346.3 599% 1.6% (5.9)%

EMEA ... ... ... 3,380.2  33.0 2,997.1 331 2,8744 322 12.8 4.3

Asia/Pacific............. . ... 1,4549  14.2 1,022.6 1.3 699.5 7.9 423 46.2
$10,244.7 $9,048.4 $8,920.2 13.2 1.4

Consolidated sales for fiscal 2004 of $10.24 billion increased by $1.19 billion, or 13.2%, over fiscal 2003
sales of $9.05 billion. Avnet finished fiscal 2004 with its strongest annual sales results since fiscal 2001. As
discussed above, this significant sales growth is largely a result of an electronic component and computer
product industry that has emerged from the roughly three-year industry and economic downturn that
commenced midway through the Company’s fiscal 2001. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates from
fiscal 2003 to 2004 also contributed to this growth in sales year-over-year by roughly $410 million. As the table
above shows, the consolidated sales growth was composed of year-over-year increases in sales in both of the
Company’s operating groups as well as across all three global regions in which Avnet does business.

EM’s sales of $5.89 billion in fiscal 2004 were up $904 million, or 18.1%, over EM’s fiscal 2003 sales of
$4.99 billion. The Asia/Pacific region was the largest driver of EM’s growth with fiscal 2004 sales of
$1.30 billion, up $430 million, or 49.6%, from sales of $868 million in fiscal 2003, and representing the sixth
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consecutive year of record sales for this region of EM’s operations. This growth in the Asia/Pacific region is
indicative of an ongoing trend whereby technology manufacturing continues to shift to this region, especially in
the component industry in which EM competes, as well as the growth of the indigenous markets. Avnet
continues to invest in this region, in the form of IT initiatives and logistics and service centers, to take
advantage of the ongoing growth opportunities of this rapidly expanding technology marketplace. EM also
generated sales growth in the other two regions of the world with EM EMEA'’s fiscal 2004 sales of
$2.13 billion growing 22.7% over fiscal 2003 sales of $1.74 billion and EM Americas’ fiscal 2004 sales of
$2.46 billion growing 3.3% over fiscal 2003 sales of $2.38 billion. In addition to the impact of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates, the increased sales in fiscal 2004 in all regions is a result of increasing
customer demand coupled with steady improvements in technology-related capital spending. These higher
demand and spending levels were prevalent throughout the majority of fiscal 2004 with an expected minor
summer flattening of demand levels in the Americas and EMEA regions in the final month of fiscal 2004 as
well as a leveling off in Asia primarily as a result of the abnormally high incoming business levels in this region
throughout the fiscal year up until the end of the fourth quarter. EM’s foreign results were positively impacted
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates, which yielded roughly $270 million of EM’s year-over-year
consolidated sales growth.

TS’s sales of $4.35 billion in fiscal 2004 were up $292 million, or 7.2%, over TS’s fiscal 2003 sales of
$4.06 billion. The Americas region has traditionally accounted for greater than 65% of TS’s global sales as was
the case again in fiscal 2004. As a result, growth in the Americas region drove much of TS’s growth overall
with sales of $2.95 billion, up 11.4% over TS Americas’ fiscal 2003 sales of $2.65 billion. The growth in TS’s
Americas business was driven primarily by strength of sales in storage, software and networking products and
services. TS EMEA’s fiscal 2004 sales of $1.25 billion were down 0.8% from fiscal 2003 sales of $1.26 billion.
However, TS EMEA’s sales results in fiscal 2004 were positively impacted by changes in foreign currency
exchange rates by an estimated $148 million. The decline in sales on a constant dollar basis in TS EMEA is
primarily a function of TS’s strategic decision in the second half of fiscal 2003 to exit certain low-profit, low
return-on-capital employed business. The customer engagements exited accounted for estimated annualized
sales in excess of $300 million in fiscal 2003. TS Asia’s fiscal 2004 sales of $156 million were up $2 million, or
1.2%, from fiscal 2003 sales of $154 million.

A combination of the regional and operating group factors discussed above resulted in EM constituting a
larger percentage of Avnet’s consolidated sales in fiscal 2004, 58%, as compared with fiscal 2003 and 2002 at
55% and 54%, respectively. This larger contribution from the EM operating group is also typical for an up-
cycle in the electronic component and computer product industry. On a consolidated basis, the dispersion of
the Company’s sales on a regional basis also continued to shift toward the Asia/Pacific region with this region
now constituting a record 14% of Avnet’s consolidated sales, as compared with less than 8% as recently as
fiscal 2002. The EMEA region’s contribution to consolidated sales has remained relatively stable over the past
three fiscal years, in the 32-33% range, while the Americas region has declined from nearly 60% in fiscal 2002
to less than 53% in fiscal 2004.

The Company closed fiscal 2003 with sales of $9.05 billion, up $128 million, or 1.4%, as compared with
fiscal 2002 consolidated sales of $8.92 billion. The strengthening of the Euro as compared with the US Dollar
drove much of this slight increase in consolidated sales between fiscal 2003 and 2002. The relatively flat sales
performance on a constant dollar basis between these two years was indicative of an electronic component and
computer product industry that had stabilized but remained relatively weak following the precipitous decline
of the industry and the economic downturn that began midway through fiscal 2001. EM’s sales of $4.99 billion
in fiscal 2003 were up $147 million, or 3.0%, over fiscal 2002 sales of $4.84 billion, driven by the strength in the
Euro and growth in the Asia/Pacific region. TS’s sales of $4.06 billion in fiscal 2003 were down slightly by
$18 million, or 0.4%, from fiscal 2002 sales of $4.08 billion driven primarily by growth in fiscal 2003 in the
enterprise computing and storage markets, offset by reduced activity in telecommunications and networking
sectors and the early impacts of the strategic decision to exit low-profit, low return-on-capital employed
business in fiscal 2003 as discussed above.
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit for fiscal 2004 was $1.36 billion, representing a gross profit margin of 13.3%, as
compared with $1.21 billion, and a comparable gross profit margin of 13.4% in fiscal 2003. The mix of business
between the Company’s two operating groups as well as the mix of product sales within the operating groups
impacts the gross profit margins of the Company. Specifically, computer product sales from TS typically yield
lower gross profit margins than the component sales of EM. In addition, the continuing growth of business in
EM Asia impacts consolidated gross profit margins as the business model in this region typically yields a lower
gross profit margin although the operating cost structure of EM Asia is also lower than the other regions in
which the Company operates. Therefore, when EM constitutes a larger percentage of consolidated sales, gross
profit margins will also typically increase. The impact on gross profit margins of EM’s increased share of
Avnet’s consolidated sales for the whole of fiscal 2004 was not significant primarily due to the mix between the
operating groups over the course of fiscal 2004. The dramatic growth in EM’s business did not fully emerge
until the second half of fiscal 2004. As a result, the Company’s consolidated gross profit margin improved by
89 basis points in the second half of fiscal 2004 when compared with the first half of fiscal 2004. Consolidated
gross profit margins of 13.9% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 reached their highest level in two years.

The Company also measures productivity by monitoring its gross profit per average employee and, due in
large part to the restructuring efforts in recent years as further discussed in Restructuring and Other Charges,
the Company’s gross profit per average employee in fiscal 2004 was approximately $139,000 as compared with
approximately $114,000 in fiscal 2003, an increase of 21.9%.

Consolidated gross profit margins were 13.4% in fiscal 2003, down from 13.7% in fiscal 2002.
Additionally, gross profit in fiscal 2002 included $21.6 million of restructuring charges discussed below which
reduced the reported gross profit margin in fiscal 2002 by 24 basis points (0.24%). This year-over-year decline
was attributable to a larger portion of the Company’s consolidated sales originating from the lower margin
computer products operating group, in addition to mix of product sales within the groups, specifically in TS
where there was a higher volume of software sales in fiscal 2003, which yield a lower gross profit margin and
have a lower capital requirement than most other computer products.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses were $1.11 billion, or 10.8% of sales, in fiscal 2004 as
compared with $1.10 billion, or 12.1% of sales in fiscal 2003. In addition to percentage of sales, another
important metric that management utilizes to monitor its operating expenses is selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of gross profit. This ratio improved to 81.1% in fiscal 2004 as
compared with 90.2% in fiscal 2003. This substantial improvement in these key measures of operating leverage
resulted from the significant cost reduction efforts that the Company put in place in recent years to manage its
overall profitability during the industry downturn and through the up-cycle that has now begun (these efforts
are further discussed in Restructuring and Other Charges below). The fiscal 2004 selling, general and
administrative expenses were also negatively impacted by foreign exchange rate differences year-over-year
which yielded an estimated increase in fiscal 2004 costs of roughly $56 million (0.5% of sales and 4.1% of gross
profit). Furthermore, the Company did not realize the majority of the benefit from the restructuring activities
of the first and second quarters of fiscal 2004 until the second half of fiscal 2004. As a result of this timing,
selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales and as a percentage of gross profit fell to
10.7% and 76.7%, respectively, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, representing the Company’s best
performance in these metrics since fiscal 2001 when the downturn began. The operating leverage ratios
discussed above, in addition to return on working capital and return on capital employed, continue to be key
metrics that management monitors in its efforts to achieve appropriate levels of profitability.

Selling, general and administrative expenses of $1.10 billion in fiscal 2003 were 12.1% of sales as
compared with $1.17 billion, or 13.1% of sales, in fiscal 2002. The improvement in fiscal 2003 was a function of
the Company’s cost reduction efforts in that year and in the previous year to remove expenses from the
business in the face of the revenue declines that occurred during the industry and economic downturn. The
impacts of these efforts were partially offset by the strengthening of the Euro against the US Dollar in fiscal
2003 as compared with fiscal 2002.
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Restructuring and Other Charges

The Company recorded a number of restructuring and other charges during the last three fiscal years.
These charges relate primarily to three items: (1) the reorganization of the Company’s operations in each of
the three major regions of the world in which the Company operates, generally taken in response to business
conditions at the time of the charge; (2) charges in fiscal 2002 stemming from acquisition and integration of
Kent Electronics Corporation (“Kent”), which was accounted for using the “pooling-of-interests” method of
accounting; and (3) charges to record impairment in the Company’s Internet-related investments. See
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements appearing in Item 15 of this Report for a detail of activity
within the restructuring and other charge accounts during the past three years.

Fiscal 2004

During the first and second quarters of fiscal 2004, the Company executed certain restructuring and cost
reduction initiatives designed to continue improving the profitability of the Company. These actions can
generally be broken into three categories: (1) the combination of CM and AC as discussed in Item 1 of this
Report and in Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements appearing in Item 15 of this Report; (2) the
reorganization of the Company’s global IT resources, which had previously been administered generally on a
separate basis within each of the Company’s operating groups; and (3) various other reductions within EM
and certain centralized support functions.

Restructuring and other charges incurred during the first quarter of fiscal 2004 totaled $32.1 million pre-tax
and $22.1 million after-tax, or $0.18 per diluted share. The pre-tax charge consisted of severance costs
($9.4 million), charges related to consolidation of selected facilities ($10.8 million), write-downs of certain
capitalized IT-related initiatives ($6.9 million) and other items, consisting primarily of the write-off of the
remaining unamortized deferred loan costs associated with the Company’s multi-year credit facility terminated
in September 2003 as discussed in Liquidity and Capital Resources — Financing Transactions ($5.0 million).

Severance costs resulted from workforce reductions of approximately 400 personnel completed during the
first quarter, primarily in executive, support and other non-customer facing functions in the Americas and
EMEA regions. Management also identified a number of facilities for consolidation primarily in the Americas
and EMEA regions. These facilities generally related to certain logistics and warehousing operations as well as
certain administrative facilities across both operating groups and at the corporate level. The charges related to
reserves for remaining non-cancelable lease obligations and write-downs to fair market value of owned assets
located in these facilities that have been vacated. Management also evaluated and elected to discontinue a
number of IT-related initiatives that, in light of recent business restructurings, no longer met the Company’s
return on investment standards for continued use or deployment. These charges related to write-offs of
capitalized hardware and software.

Restructuring charges incurred during the second quarter of fiscal 2004 totaled $23.5 million pre-tax,
$16.4 million after-tax, or $0.14 per diluted share. The charges consisted of severance costs ($5.3 million),
charges related to write-downs of owned assets and consolidation of selected facilities ($4.8 million), write-
downs of certain capitalized IT-related initiatives ($12.9 million) and other items ($0.5 million).

Severance charges related to workforce reductions of approximately 120 personnel, the majority of whom
staffed warehousing, administrative and support functions primarily for facilities within TS EMEA operations
that were identified for consolidation as part of the combination of CM and AC. A smaller portion of these
charges also impacted operations in the Americas. The combination of CM and AC in EMEA also led to
charges related to reserves for remaining non-cancelable lease obligations and write-downs to fair market value
of owned assets located in the facilities that were vacated. The facilities primarily served in warehousing and
administrative capacities. Management also evaluated and elected to discontinue a number of IT-related
initiatives similar to the decisions also reached in the first quarter of fiscal 2004 as discussed above. These
charges related to the write-off of capitalized hardware and software. Lastly, the Company’s efforts to combine
CM and AC in EMEA resulted in the decision to merge the former CM EMEA operations onto the computer
systems that have historically been used in the AC EMEA business. The change in the use of this significant
asset of CM EMEA generated a need to analyze the group of long-lived assets within the former CM EMEA
operations for impairment. As a result of this analysis, the Company recorded an impairment charge to write-
down certain long-lived assets to their estimated fair market values. This charge, totaling $9.4 million, of which
$4.2 million relates to the CM EMEA computer systems, is included in the facilities and IT-related charges
discussed above.
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, as part of management’s ongoing analysis of the reserves for
various restructuring activities, the Company recorded adjustments to certain of its remaining reserves. The
adjustments occurred primarily in the Company’s EM and TS operations in EMEA and related to
adjustments to reduce excess severance reserves based upon revised estimates of statutorily required payouts
and recording of additional charges related to leased facilities due to modifications to sublease and termination
assumptions based upon ongoing market conditions. The Company also negotiated a favorable buyout of a
hardware and software maintenance contract, which resulted in the reversal of certain IT-related reserves. The
net amount of these adjustments was less than $0.1 million.

The combined charges recorded during fiscal 2004 totaled $55.6 million pre-tax and $38.5 million after-
tax, or $0.32 per diluted share.

Fiscal 2003

During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company executed certain actions as part of its cost
reduction initiatives and, accordingly, recorded charges totaling $106.8 million pre-tax, $65.7 million after tax,
or $0.55 per diluted share. The charge consisted of severance costs ($21.7 million pre-tax), charges related to
the consolidation of selected facilities ($37.4 million pre-tax) and charges related to certain IT-related
initiatives ($47.7 million pre-tax).

These charges included severance costs and charges related to the consolidation of selected facilities,
taken in response to the business environment. During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, management
identified a number of facilities in each of the Company’s operating groups and its corporate functions, which
covered each of the Company’s geographic regions, to be consolidated into other facilities. The facilities were
identified in an effort to combine certain logistics and administrative operations wherever possible and
eliminate what would otherwise be duplicative costs. The charges related to reserves for remaining non-
cancelable lease obligations, write-downs of the carrying value of certain owned facilities to market value and
write-downs to fair market value of owned assets located in these leased and owned facilities that were
vacated. Additionally, workforce reductions at these and other facilities worldwide resulted in the termination
of approximately 750 personnel. The impacted personnel were primarily in non-customer facing positions. The
IT-related charges resulted from management’s decision during the second quarter of fiscal 2003 to
discontinue a number of IT-related initiatives that represented insufficient benefit to the Company if they were
kept in service or continued to be developed. These charges included the write-off of capitalized hardware,
software and software licenses.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company executed certain additional actions that resulted in
charges totaling $6.6 million pre-tax. The incremental impact of these actions was substantially offset by
certain adjustments that the Company recorded, also in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, primarily relating to
certain of the reserves recorded from the restructuring activity in the second quarter of fiscal 2003. The new
charge activity, mostly for severance and consolidation of selected facilities, related to each of the Company’s
three operating groups and its corporate functions in the Americas and EMEA regions. The additional census
reductions totaled approximately 175 and resulted primarily from: (1) EM’s decision to combine its Cilicon
and RF and Microwave sales divisions; and (2) TS’s decision to reduce its participation in certain market
segments where profitability of the products in question have not yielded acceptable economic returns to the
Company. The fourth quarter adjustments to prior restructuring and other charges reflect changes in estimates
from the time the charges and applicable reserves were initially recorded, relating to: (1) reserves for
severance and for leases and other contractual commitments that were determined to be excessive during the
fourth quarter based upon payments made or still to be made and/or based upon more favorable than
anticipated sublease or lease buyout arrangements; and (2) an adjustment, based upon estimated sales price
net of costs to sell as derived from current market studies and comparable sales, of a portion of a write-down
that was recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2003 related to an owned facility that was vacated and
classified as held for sale during that quarter.

Fiscal 2002

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company recorded charges representing a write-down in value of
certain assets acquired in the fiscal 2001 acquisition of Kent and certain other charges taken in response to
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business conditions. The charge totaled $79.6 million pre-tax ($21.6 million included in cost of sales and the
remaining $58.0 million included as a component of operating expenses) and $62.1 million after tax, or
$0.52 per share on a diluted basis.

The Kent-related items resulted from the acquisition of Kent being accounted for using the “pooling-of-
interests” method of accounting for the acquisition. These items related specifically to assets or obligations
that were on the books of Kent at the acquisition and, therefore, under the “pooling-of-interests” method,
these items that normally would have been reflected as adjustments to goodwill if the purchase method of
accounting had been used were instead recorded to the Company’s consolidated statement of operations.
These items amounted to $29.7 million pre-tax and relate primarily to: (1) write-downs to the value of
receivables considered uncollectible after the Company had exhausted efforts of collecting these amounts from
Kent’s pre-acquisition customers ($8.2 million pre-tax); (2) excess and obsolete inventory, primarily for
customer-specific inventory held by Kent at the acquisition date that was subsequently determined, through
ongoing negotiations with the customer, to require a write-down to net realizable value ($21.6 million pre-
tax); and (3) charges to record additional write-downs to approximate fair market value on held-for-sale
properties acquired in the Kent acquisition or to record lease reserves for non-cancelable lease obligations on
properties the Company committed to exit ($15.9 million pre-tax); (4) net of approximately $16.0 million
pre-tax in cash recoveries of certain charges recorded as part of the restructuring and integration charges taken
in the fourth quarter of 2001.

The remaining pre-tax charge recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, which amounted to
$49.9 million, included an impairment charge of $36.2 million pre-tax to write-down certain of the Company’s
investments in unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair market value and $13.7 million pre-tax
for severance charges taken for workforce reductions, primarily in the Americas region, with more limited
reductions in EMEA and Asia, totaling approximately 850 individuals. The impairments recorded to the
Company’s Internet-related investments are considered capital losses for tax purposes and were therefore only
deductible to the extent the Company had available capital gains. At that time, there were no capital gains,
available or forecasted in the foreseeable future, to offset these losses. Therefore, the Company generally did
not record a tax benefit for these losses.

Status of Restructuring Reserves

As of July 3, 2004, the Company’s total remaining reserves for restructuring and other related activities
totaled $26.8 million. Of this balance, $3.0 million relates to remaining severance reserves, the majority of
which the Company expects to utilize by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Reserves for $22.4 million
relate to reserves for contractual lease commitments, substantially all of which the Company expects to utilize
by the end of fiscal 2007. The IT-related and other reserves, which total $1.4 million, relate primarily to
remaining contractual commitments, the majority of which the Company expects to utilize by the end of fiscal
2005.

Operating Income (Loss)

Operating income for fiscal 2004 was $202.2 million, or 2.0% of consolidated sales as compared with
operating income of $12.7 million, or 0.1% of consolidated sales in fiscal 2003. Results for both of these
periods include the negative impacts of restructuring and other charges, further discussed above, which totaled
$55.6 million, or 0.5% of sales, in fiscal 2004 and $106.8 million, or 1.2% of sales in fiscal 2003. This significant
improvement in operating income in absolute dollars and as a percentage of sales is driven by the growth in
sales and the reduction in selling, general and administrative expenses, all of which are discussed previously in
this MD&A.

EM reported operating income of $212.5 million, or 3.6% of EM’s sales, in fiscal 2004, which is more
than double EM’s operating income in fiscal 2003 of $101.9 million, or 2.0% of EM’s sales. TS’s fiscal 2004
operating income of $98.9 million, or 2.3% of TS’s sales, also improved from $56.2 million, or 1.4% of TS’s
sales, in fiscal 2003. These operating income results within Avnet’s operating groups are, similar to the
consolidated results, primarily a function of the Company’s ongoing cost reduction efforts across both
operating groups and all regions, in addition to the growth in sales year-over-year.
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The Company’s fiscal 2003 consolidated operating income of $12.7 million was up from a loss of
$3.0 million in fiscal 2002, both periods including the negative impacts of restructuring and other charges
discussed above ($106.8 million in fiscal 2003 and $79.6 million in fiscal 2002). The improvement in operating
income in fiscal 2003 is the result of the early impacts of the Company’s efforts to remove ongoing costs from
the business through its restructuring efforts since the end of fiscal 2001.

Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense was $94.6 million in fiscal 2004, down 9.8% as compared with $104.9 million in fiscal
2003. The decrease in interest expense between periods is a function of two factors. First, the Company has
reduced its total debt outstanding. The Company’s average balance of debt and drawings under its accounts
receivable securitization program during fiscal 2004 was $1.41 billion as compared with $1.62 billion in fiscal
2003. The second factor in this decrease in expense relates to the change in the Company’s effective interest
rates due to the composition of the Company’s debt balances. The Company fully repaid its original principal
balances of $200.0 million of 6.45% Notes due August 15, 2003 and $250.0 million of 8.20% Notes due
October 17, 2003 through tender and early redemption of these notes during fiscal 2003 and the repayment of
the remaining principal and interest upon maturity in the first half of fiscal 2004 (see Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Financing Transactions for further discussion of this transaction and other debt activity
discussed below). Although the Company added $475.0 million of 9%.% Notes due February 15, 2008 in the
third quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company also entered into hedge contracts for $300.0 million of these notes
which effectively converts these notes from a fixed rate of 9%.% to a variable rate (7.8% at July 3, 2004) based
upon US LIBOR plus a spread. The Company also benefited significantly in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004
from the offering of the $300.0 million 2% Convertible Debentures due March 15, 2034 and the tender for a
portion of the outstanding 77/s% Notes due February 15, 2005, both of which closed before the end of the third
quarter of fiscal 2004.

Interest expense was $104.9 million in fiscal 2003 as compared with $124.6 million in fiscal 2002,
representing a 15.8% decline year-over-year. This decrease is due primarily to the ongoing debt reductions and
reduced drawings under the accounts receivable securitization program (see Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements for further discussion) during fiscal 2003. Consolidated debt
balances at June 27, 2003 were $1.47 billion as compared with $1.63 billion at June 28, 2002. Additionally, the
Company had $200.0 million of outstanding drawings under the accounts receivable securitization program at
June 28, 2002.

Other income, net, which includes interest income, was $7.1 million in fiscal 2004 as compared with
$26.2 million in fiscal 2003 and $6.8 million in fiscal 2002. The primary variable impacting other income, net,
is the effect of foreign currency gains or losses, which resulted in a gain in fiscal 2003 as compared with the
results for fiscal 2004 and 2002.

Debt Extinguishment Costs

As discussed further under Liquidity and Capital Resources — Financing Transactions, the Company
incurred debt extinguishment costs in both fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003 associated with the tender and early
redemption of a portion of its outstanding publicly traded debt. In completing these transactions the Company
incurred debt extinguishment costs, related primarily to premiums and other transaction costs associated with
these tenders and early redemptions, which totaled $16.4 million pre-tax, $14.2 million after-tax, or $0.12 per
share on a diluted basis in fiscal 2004 and $13.5 million pre-tax, $8.2 million after-tax, or $0.07 per share on a
diluted basis in fiscal 2003.

Income Tax Provision (Benefit)

The Company’s effective tax rate in fiscal 2004 was 25.9% as compared with 41.9% in fiscal 2003. The
mix of Avnet’s profits amongst its various international subsidiaries with varying statutory tax rates impacts
the Company’s effective tax rates. The continuing improvement in profitability, particularly in the EMEA and
Asia/Pacific regions, has led to an effective tax rate substantially lower than the 35% U.S. federal tax rate.
Similarly, the mix of profits amongst international subsidiaries in fiscal 2003 yielded an effective tax rate on
the Company’s pre-tax loss that was more favorable than the 35% U.S. federal tax rate.

20



The otherwise favorable rate impacts from the mix of international profits in fiscal 2002 were offset by the
impact of the Company’s charges to impair its investment in certain unconsolidated Internet-related
businesses, which charges were not deductible for tax purposes (see Restructuring and Other Charges for
further discussion). As a result, the effective tax rate in fiscal 2002 was 30.1% as compared with 41.9% in fiscal
2003.

Net Income (Loss)

As a result of the factors described in the preceding sections of this MD&A, the Company’s net income
was $72.9 million, or $0.60 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal 2004 as compared with a net loss of
$46.1 million, or $0.39 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal 2003 and a net loss before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle of $84.4 million, or $0.71 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal 2002. These
results include the negative after-tax impact of restructuring and other charges and debt extinguishment costs
of $52.8 million, or $0.44 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal 2004, $73.9 million, or $0.62 per share on a
diluted basis, in fiscal 2003 and $62.1 million, or $0.52 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal 2002.

Change in Accounting Principle — Goodwill

The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”), Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, which establishes
financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets. The Company’s
mechanism for adoption of SFAS No. 142 is further discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements appearing in Item 15 of this Report. As a result of transition impairment provisions of SFAS 142,
the Company recorded an impairment charge of $580.5 million, or $4.90 per share on a diluted basis, in fiscal
2002, which was recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first quarter of
fiscal 2002.

The magnitude of the transition impairment charge was significantly impacted by the timing of the
effective date of when the fair value analysis was performed and the designation of the reporting unit structure.
Since the Company adopted SFAS 142 on June 30, 2001, the fair value analysis was required to be completed
as of that date. Due to the difficult business and economic conditions at that date, which severely impacted the
market sectors in which the Company operates, and the uncertainty as to when such conditions would
materially improve, the fair value of the Company’s businesses was significantly less than it might have been at
other times. In other words, in a cyclical business, the timing of a valuation such as this may be an important
factor in the outcome of the valuation exercise. The reporting units with the most significant impairment of
goodwill are in Europe where the Company had not yet generated an acceptable level of profits and cash flows.
In addition, the defined reporting unit structure resulted in an impairment of goodwill which includes goodwill
related to certain recent acquisitions that otherwise might not have been impaired.

The Company conducts its periodic test for goodwill impairment annually, on the first day of the fiscal
fourth quarter. The Company’s annual impairment tests in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 have yielded no
additional impairments to the carrying value of the Company’s goodwill.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. These estimates and assumptions are based upon the Company’s continuous evaluation of historical
results and anticipated future events. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

The Securities and Exchange Commission defines critical accounting polices as those that are, in
management’s view, most important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and results of
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operations and that require significant judgments and estimates. Management believes the Company’s most
critical accounting policies relate to:

Valuation of Receivables: The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from customer defaults. Bad debt reserves are recorded based upon historic default averages as
well as the Company’s regular assessment of the financial condition of its customers. Therefore, if collection
experience or the financial condition of specific customers were to deteriorate, management would evaluate
whether additional allowances and corresponding charge to the consolidated statement of operations are
required.

Valuation of Inventories: Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost (first in — first out) or estimated
market value. The Company’s inventories include high-technology components, embedded systems and
computing technologies sold into rapidly changing, cyclical and competitive markets whereby such inventories
may be subject to early technological obsolescence.

The Company regularly evaluates inventories for excess, obsolescence or other factors that may render
inventories less marketable. Write-downs are recorded so that inventories reflect the approximate net
realizable value and take into account the Company’s contractual provisions with its suppliers, which provide
certain protections to the Company for product obsolescence and price erosion in the form of rights of return
and price protection. Because of the large number of transactions and the complexity of managing the process
around price protections and stock rotations, estimates are made regarding adjustments to the carrying amount
of inventories. Additionally, assumptions about future demand, market conditions and decisions to discontinue
certain product lines can impact the decision to write down inventories. If assumptions about future demand
change or actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, management
would evaluate whether additional write-downs of inventories are required. In any case, actual values could be
different from those estimated.

Accounting for Income Taxes: Management judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities and the valuation allowance recorded against net deferred tax
assets. The carrying value of the Company’s net foreign operating loss carry-forwards is dependent upon its
ability to generate sufficient future taxable income in certain tax jurisdictions. In addition, the Company
considers historic levels of income, expectations and risk associated with estimates of future taxable income
and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing a tax valuation allowance. Should the
Company determine that it is not able to realize all or part of its deferred tax assets in the future, an additional
valuation allowance may be recorded against the deferred tax assets with a corresponding charge to income in
the period such determination is made.

Restructuring and Integration Charges: The Company has been subject to the financial impact of
integrating acquired businesses and charges related to business reorganizations. In connection with such
events, management is required to make estimates about the financial impact of such matters that are
inherently uncertain. Accrued liabilities and reserves are established to cover the cost of severance, facility
consolidation and closure, lease termination fees, inventory adjustments based upon acquisition-related
termination of supplier agreements and/or the re-evaluation of the acquired working capital assets (inventory
and accounts receivable), and write-down of other acquired assets including goodwill. Actual amounts
incurred could be different from those estimated.

Additionally, in assessing the Company’s goodwill for impairment in accordance with SFAS 142, the
Company is required to make significant assumptions about the future cash flows and overall performance of
its reporting units. Should these assumptions or the structure of the reporting units change in the future based
upon market conditions or changes in business strategy, the Company may be required to record additional
impairment charges to its remaining goodwill. See Change in Accounting Principle — Goodwill in this MD&A
for further discussion of SFAS 142 and the Company’s evaluation of its goodwill for any potential impairment.

Contingencies and Litigation: The Company is involved in various legal proceedings and other claims
related to environmental, labor, product and other matters, all of which arise in the normal course of business.
The Company is required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgment or outcome to these matters, as well
as the range of potential losses. A determination of the reserves required, if any, is made after careful analysis
by management and internal and, when necessary, external counsel. The required reserves may change in the
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future due to developments or a change in circumstances. Changes to reserves could increase or decrease
earnings in the period the changes are effective.

The Company does not consider revenue recognition to be a critical accounting policy due to the nature
of its business in which revenues are generally recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility
is reasonably assured. Generally these criteria are met upon the actual shipment of product to the customer.
Accordingly, other than for estimates related to possible returns of products from customers, discounts or
rebates, the recording of revenue does not require significant judgments or estimates. Furthermore, revenues
from maintenance contracts, which are deferred and recognized to income over the life of the agreement, are
not material to the consolidated results of operations of the Company.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46R (“FIN 46R”), Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, which is a revised Interpretation clarifying some of the provisions of the original
Interpretation No. 46 issued in January 2003. FIN 46R requires the consolidation of variable interest entities
(“VIEs”), as defined, based upon an assessment of a company’s investment interests in the VIE as it relates to
the interests of other investors in the VIE. FIN 46R also includes certain disclosure requirements related to
any VIEs. The application of FIN 46R is required for any VIEs or potential VIEs commonly referred to as
special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 15, 2003. Application for all other types of VIEs is
required in financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004. The adoption of FIN 46R did not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, the FASB revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 132
(“SFAS 132”), Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. The revised
SFAS 132 requires additional disclosures about plan assets, benefit obligations, cash flows, benefit costs and
other relevant information related to pensions and other postretirement benefits. The disclosure requirements
of the revised SFAS 132 are effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended July 3, 2004 and such
disclosures are included in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 15 of this Report.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the Company’s cash flow activities for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002,
including the Company’s computation of free cash flow. Management believes that the non-GAAP metric of
free cash flow is a useful measure to help management and investors better assess and understand the
Company’s operating performance and sources and uses of cash. Management also believes analysis of free
cash flow assists in identifying underlying trends in the business.

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Millions)
Net income excluding non-cash and other reconciling
items and cumulative effect of change in accounting
PHNCIPIE © . . e $ 213,680 $ 169,457 $ 151,511
Cash flow generated from (used for) working capital
(excluding cash and cash equivalents) ............... (149,031) 482,421 824,794
Net cash flow from operations.................... 64,649 651,878 976,305
Cash flow generated from (used for):
Purchases of property, plant and equipment .......... (28,623) (34,169) (87,173)
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant and
EQUIPMENT . .\ttt e 5,229 16,379 3,423
Acquisition of operations and investments ............ (50,528) (9,210) (34,091)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents. . 8,834 13,194 12,859
Cash dividends ........... ... ... ... ... ... ....... — — (26,546)
Other, net financing activities ...................... 13,914 (474) 24,225
Net free cash flow. . ... ... .. ... . .. 13,475 637,598 869,002
Reduced drawings under accounts receivable
securitization program . .....................eon... — (200,000)  (150,000)
Repayment of debt, net .......... .. ... ... ... ... ... (96,275)  (201,365)  (657,047)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (82,800) $ 236,233 $§ 61,955

During fiscal 2004, the Company generated $64.7 million of cash and cash equivalents from its operating
activities. This is made up of the cash flow generated from net income excluding non-cash and other
reconciling items, which includes the add-back of depreciation and amortization, deferred taxes, non-cash
restructuring and other charges (see Results of Operations — Restructuring and Other Charges for further
discussion) and other non-cash items (primarily the provision for doubtful accounts — see Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements appearing in Item 15 of this Report). The sum of these items yielded cash
inflow for the year of $213.7 million. Partially offsetting this amount are cash flows of $149.0 million used for
the Company’s working capital needs (excluding cash and cash equivalents) during fiscal 2004. The primary
driver of this outflow relate to the growth of receivables ($271.3 million) and inventory ($240.5 million), net
of cash flow generation from accounts payable ($285.4 million) and other working capital items ($77.4 mil-
lion). These trends in working capital are typical of an up-cycle in the electronic components industry as
growth in receivables and payables is driven by higher sales and purchasing volumes. Additionally, inventory
growth was also expected as the industry moves into an up-cycle, especially in the electronic components
sector where longer lead times from suppliers and increased demand from customers typically result in the
distributor carrying higher levels of inventory. As a result, EM elected to build inventory in certain products to
accommodate the growing levels in demand and in support of customer contractual agreements to purchase
certain inventory. Despite this growth in inventory during fiscal 2004, the Company’s inventory turns for the
year remained at their highest point since before the last up-cycle ended in fiscal 2001 and actually improved
by 18% over inventory turns in fiscal 2003. Within EM on a standalone basis, where the majority of the
inventory increases took place, fiscal 2004 inventory turns improved by 16% over fiscal 2003. This
improvement in turns is driven by a combination of the increased sales and the selective buildup of inventory
primarily in higher volume product lines. Even with some moderate seasonal leveling off of sales in the final
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month of fiscal 2004, management believes its inventory levels are adequate but not excessive in addressing
forecast demand in the upcoming months.

Since the industry and economic downturn commenced in fiscal 2001, the Company has significantly
reduced its capital expenditures as well as its acquisition and investment activity. However, during fiscal 2004,
the Company completed a contingent purchase price payment associated with its January 2000 acquisition of
84% of the stock of Eurotronics B.V., which went to market as SEI. The share purchase agreement for this
acquisition called for an additional payment of cash or common stock of the Company if the Company’s share
price did not reach $45.25 per share by January 2004. As a result, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the
Company paid, in cash, the sum of $48.9 million as settlement of the Company’s final obligation under this
acquisition. This coupled with other, less significant contingent purchase price payments and the acquisition of
a minority interest in one of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries resulted in total cash outflow for acquisitions
and investments of $50.5 million during fiscal 2004. These outflows for investing activities, offset in part by the
favorable impact of foreign currency on cash and cash equivalents and other financing activities, yielded a net
free cash flow of $13.5 million. This net free cash flow, coupled with the cash usage for the Company’s
retirement, both early and at maturity, of certain of the Company’s debt net of proceeds from new debt issued
during fiscal 2004 (see Financing Transactions), resulted in a net decrease in cash during fiscal 2004 of
$82.8 million.

In fiscal 2003, cash flow of $169.5 million was generated from net income (loss) excluding non-cash and
other reconciling items and $482.4 million was generated by reductions in working capital (excluding cash and
cash equivalents), thus generating net cash flow from operations of $651.9 million. The positive cash flow
generated from working capital reductions resulted from the Company’s continued efforts to improve its asset
utilization and efficiency, primarily through reductions of receivables (cash inflow of $140.7 million) and
inventories (cash inflow of $387.1 million), in what continued to be a stable but weak electronic components
and computer products distribution industry during fiscal 2003. In addition to cash flow from operating
activities in fiscal 2003, $5.1 million was needed for other business operations including purchases of property,
plant and equipment, net of cash proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and cash generated
from other items, including the impact of foreign currency exchange rates on the Company’s cash and cash
equivalents. The Company also used $9.2 million for acquisitions of operations and investments (primarily
contingent purchase price payments) during fiscal 2003, to yield net free cash flow in fiscal 2003 of
$637.6 million. A total of $401.4 million of this free cash flow was used to reduce the Company’s borrowings
under its accounts receivable securitization program in addition to the retirement of certain of the Company’s
long-term debt, net of proceeds from new debt issued during fiscal 2003, with the remaining $236.2 million
generating additional cash and cash equivalents during fiscal 2003.

In fiscal 2002, cash flow from operating activities totaled $976.3 million. During this period, $151.5 mil-
lion was generated from net income (loss) excluding non-cash and other reconciling items and the cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle. An additional $824.8 million was generated by reductions in working
capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents). The cash flow impact of working capital was more significant in
fiscal 2002 than in the years thereafter as this year represented the first full fiscal year of the economic
downturn and, thus, a period when more significant balance sheet management initiatives were put in place. In
addition, the Company used $73.2 million for other business operations including dividend payments,
purchases of property plant and equipment, offset in part by cash proceeds on sale of property plant and
equipment and net cash generated from other items. The Company also used $34.1 million for acquisitions of
operations and investments during 2002. The resulting net free cash flow of $869.0 million along with
$394.3 million of cash proceeds from long-term debt financing were used to reduce drawings under the
accounts receivable securitization program by $150.0 million and to, net, repay debt balances of $1.051 billion.
Finally, cash and cash equivalents increased by $62.0 million for the year.

Capital Structure

The Company uses a variety of financing arrangements, both short-term and long-term, to fund its
operations. The Company uses diversified sources of funding so that it does not become overly dependent on
one source and to achieve lower cost of funding through these different alternatives. These financing
arrangements include public bonds, short-term and long-term bank loans, commercial paper and an accounts
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receivable securitization program. For a detailed description of the Company’s external financing arrange-
ments outstanding at July 3, 2004, please refer to Note 7 in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
appearing in Item 15 of this Report.

The table below highlights the Company’s capital structure:

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
(Dollars in thousands)

July 3, 2004 June 27, 2003 % Change

Short-term debt.......... ... .. $ 160,660 $ 187,656 (14.4)%
Long-term debt ......... ... ... ... .. 1,196,160 1,278,399 (6.4)
1,356,820 1,466,055 (7.5)
Shareholders” equity ..........coo i, 1,953,426 1,832,522 6.6
Total capital. ... ...ttt $3,310,246  $3,298,577 0.4

Long-term debt in the above table includes the fair value adjustment of $13.6 million and $36.2 million at
July 3, 2004 and June 27, 2003, respectively, for the hedged 8.00% Notes and 9°% Notes discussed in
Financing Transactions below.

Financing Transactions

In June 2004, the Company entered into an unsecured, three-year $350.0 million credit facility with a
syndicate of banks led by Banc of America LLC and ABN AMRO Incorporated (the “Credit Facility”’). The
Company may select from various interest rate options, currencies and maturities under the Credit Facility.
There were no borrowings under the Credit Facility as of July 3, 2004.

In March 2004, the Company issued $300.0 million of 2% Convertible Senior Debentures due March 15,
2034 (the “Debentures”). The Debentures are convertible into Avnet common stock at a rate of
29.5516 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Debentures. The Debentures are only
convertible under certain circumstances, including if: (i) the closing price of the Company’s common stock
reaches $45.68 per share (subject to adjustment in certain circumstances) for a specified period of time;
(ii) the average trading price of the Debentures falls below a certain percentage of the conversion value per
Debenture for a specified period of time; (iii) the Company calls the Debentures for redemption; or
(iv) certain corporate transactions, as defined, occur. Upon conversion, the Company has the right to deliver
to the holder cash or a combination of cash and common stock, in lieu of solely common stock. The Company
may redeem some or all of the Debentures for cash any time on or after March 20, 2009 at the Debentures’
full principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Holders of the Debentures may require the
Company to purchase, in cash, all or a portion of the Debentures on March 15, 2009, 2014, 2019, 2024 and
2029, or upon a fundamental change, as defined, at the Debentures’ full principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any.

The proceeds from the issuance of the Debentures, net of underwriting fees, were $292.5 million. The
Company used these proceeds to fund the tender and purchase of $273.4 million of its 7”s% Notes due
February 15, 2005. The Company incurred debt extinguishment costs of $16.4 million pre-tax, $14.2 million
after-tax and $0.12 per share on a diluted basis during fiscal 2004 related primarily to premiums and other
transaction costs associated with this tender.

In March 2004, the Company also repaid in cash its $100.0 million of 6/s% Notes that matured on
March 15, 2004.

In September 2003, the Company terminated its former $350.0 million multi-year credit facility which
was scheduled to mature on October 25, 2004. There were no outstanding borrowings under this multi-year
credit facility at the end of fiscal 2003 or at the time of the termination and, because the Company did not
expect to draw on the facility prior to its expiration date, management elected to terminate the facility.
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In February 2003, the Company used the proceeds of $465.3 million, net of underwriting fees, from the
issuance in that month of the Company’s $475.0 million of 9% Notes due February 14, 2008 (the
“9%.% Notes) to redeem $159.1 million of its 6.45% Notes due August 15, 2003 (the “6.45% Notes”) and
$220.1 million of its 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003 (the “8.20% Notes™). The excess proceeds after these
early redemptions were held in an escrow account and used to repay the remaining principal on the 6.45% and
8.20% Notes at their respective maturity dates plus interest due through their maturities. The Company
incurred debt extinguishment costs of $13.5 million pre-tax, $8.2 million after tax and $0.07 per share on a
diluted basis during fiscal 2003 related primarily to premiums and other transaction costs associated with the
tender and early redemption of the 6.45% and 8.20% Notes.

The Company has two interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $400.0 million in order to hedge
the change in fair value of the 8.00% Notes due November 15, 2006 (the “8% Notes™) related to fluctuations
in interest rates. These contracts are classified as fair value hedges and mature in November 2006. The interest
rate swaps modify the Company’s interest rate exposure by effectively converting the fixed rate on the
8% Notes to a floating rate (4.5% at July 3, 2004) based on three-month U.S. LIBOR plus a spread through
their maturities. In July 2003, the Company entered into three additional interest rate swaps with a total
notional amount of $300.0 million in order to hedge the change in fair value of the 9%.% Notes related to
fluctuations in interest rates. These hedges are also classified as fair value hedges and mature in February
2008. These interest rate swaps modify the Company’s interest exposure by effectively converting the fixed
rate on the 9%:% Notes to a floating rate (7.8% at July 3, 2004) based on three-month U.S. LIBOR plus a
spread through their maturities. The hedged fixed rate debt and the interest rate swaps are adjusted to current
market values through interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations. The fair value of the
interest rate swaps at July 3, 2004 and June 27, 2003 was $13.6 million and $36.2 million, respectively, and is
included in other long-term assets in the consolidated balance sheet. Additionally, included in long-term debt
is a comparable fair value adjustment increasing the total liability by these same amounts.

In addition to its primary financing arrangements, the Company has several small lines of credit in
various locations to fund the short-term working capital, foreign exchange, overdraft and letter of credit needs
of its wholly owned subsidiaries in Europe and Asia. Avnet generally guarantees its subsidiaries’ debt under
these facilities.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has a $350.0 million accounts receivable securitization program (the “Program’) with two
financial institutions whereby it may sell, on a revolving basis, an undivided interest in a pool of its trade
accounts receivable. Under the Program, the Company may sell receivables in securitization transactions and
retain a subordinated interest and servicing rights to those receivables. Receivables sold under the Program are
sold without legal recourse to third party conduits through a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote special purpose
entity that is consolidated for financial reporting purposes. The Program qualifies for sale treatment under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities. The availability for financing under the Program is dependent on the
level of the Company’s trade receivables from month to month. There were no receivables sold under the
Program at July 3, 2004 or at June 27, 2003. The purpose of the Program is to provide the Company with an
additional source of liquidity at interest rates more favorable than it could receive through other forms of
financing. The term of the current Program agreement extends to August 2005.

Covenants and Conditions

The Program agreement discussed above requires the Company to maintain minimum senior unsecured
credit ratings in order to continue utilizing the Program in its current form. These minimum ratings triggers are
Ba3 by Moody’s Investor Services (“Moody’s”) or BB— by Standard & Poors (“S&P”). The Program also
contains certain covenants relating to the quality of the receivables sold under the Program. If these conditions
are not met, the Company may not be able to borrow any additional funds under the Program and the financial
institutions may consider this an amortization event, as defined in the Program agreement, which would permit
the financial institutions to liquidate the accounts receivable sold under the Program to cover any outstanding
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borrowings. Circumstances that could affect the Company’s ability to meet the required covenants and
conditions of the Program include the Company’s ongoing profitability and perceived financial strength or
weakness by credit rating agencies and various other economic, market and industry factors. The Company was
in compliance with all covenants of the Program at July 3, 2004.

The Credit Facility discussed in Financing Transactions contains certain covenants with various
limitations on debt incurrence, dividends, investments and capital expenditures and also includes financial
covenants requiring the Company to maintain minimum interest coverage and leverage ratios, as defined.
Management does not believe that the covenants in the Credit Facility limit the Company’s ability to pursue
its intended business strategy or future financing needs. The Company was in compliance with all covenants of
the Credit Facility as of July 3, 2004.

See Liquidity for further discussion of the Company’s availability under these various facilities.
Liquidity

The Company had total borrowing capacity of $700.0 million at July 3, 2004 under the Credit Facility
and the Program, against which $18.9 million in letters of credit were issued under the Credit Facility as of
July 3, 2004, resulting in $681.1 million of net availability. The Company also had an additional $312.7 million
of cash and cash equivalents at July 3, 2004. There are no significant financial commitments of the Company
outside of normal debt and lease maturities as disclosed in Long-Term Contractual Obligations below.
Management believes that Avnet’s borrowing capacity, its current cash availability and the Company’s
expected ability to generate operating cash flows are sufficient to meet its projected financing needs. If the
current up-cycle in the electronic components and computer products industry continues, the Company is less
likely to generate positive cash flows from working capital reductions. However, any additional cash
requirements are expected to be offset by the operating cash flows generated by the Company’s enhanced
profitability model resulting from the significant cost reductions achieved by the Company in recent years.
Furthermore, the next significant public debt maturity is not until the $400.0 million 8% Notes mature in
November 2006, which provides over two years for the Company to review repayment or refinancing
alternatives.

The following table highlights the Company’s liquidity and related ratios for the past two years:

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY
(Dollars in millions)

Years Ended Percentage
July 3, 2004  June 27, 2003(1) Change

Current ASSELS . ..ottt $3,484.0 $3,126.1 11.4%
Quick ASSets . .ot 2,056.6 1,867.3 10.1
Current Liabilities ........... ... ... .. 1,645.0 1,306.1 26.0
Working Capital ......... ... .. . 1,839.0 1,820.0 1.0
Total Debt. ... 1,356.8 1,466.1 (7.5)
Total Capital (total debt plus total shareholders’ equity) 3,310.2 3,298.6 0.4
Quick Ratio............ . i 1.3:1 1.4:1

Working Capital Ratio............. ... .. .. ... .... 2.1:1 2.4:1

Debt to Total Capital . .............................. 41.0% 44.4%

(1) Ratios that include cash and cash equivalents include $78.5 million of restricted cash held in escrow at
June 27, 2003 to fund remaining principal and interest payments on the 6.45% and 8.20% Notes (see
Financing Transactions for further discussion).

The Company’s quick assets (consisting of cash and cash equivalents and receivables) at July 3, 2004
have increased primarily due to the increase in receivables as a function of the growth in sales volumes during
fiscal 2004 net of a lesser decrease in cash and cash equivalents used to fund the growth of the business and for
the pay-down of certain of the Company’s debt balances (see Cash Flow and Financing Transactions for
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further discussion). The increase in inventories during fiscal 2004, as discussed in Cash Flow, has resulted in
additional growth in current assets. Additionally, the increased volume of purchases to accommodate the
growth in volume of business has resulted in similar growth in accounts payable and, thus, in total current
liabilities. As a result of these trends, quick assets were greater than the Company’s current liabilities by
$411.6 million at July 3, 2004 as compared with $561.2 million at June 27, 2003. Working capital grew,
however, to $1.84 billion at July 3, 2004 as compared with $1.82 billion at the end of the previous year. At
July 3, 2004, to support each dollar of current liabilities, the Company had $1.25 of quick assets and $0.87 of
other current assets for a total of $2.12 as compared with $2.39 at June 27, 2003.

Long-Term Contractual Obligations

The Company has the following contractual obligations outstanding as of July 3, 2004 (in millions):

Due in Less Due in Due in Due After
Total than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt, including amounts due
within one year .................. $1,343.3 $160.7 $400.8 $476.8 $305.0
Operating leases ................... 177.6 46.7 63.5 35.1 32.3

$1,520.9 $207.4 $464.3 $511.9 $337.3

At July 3, 2004, the Company has five interest rate swaps outstanding on two of its fixed rate debt
instruments which have yielded a fair value adjustment of $13.6 million to the Company’s long-term debt
included in the consolidated balance sheet at July 3, 2004.

The Company does not currently have any material commitments for capital expenditures.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility associated with changes in interest rates
and foreign currency exchange rates by entering into financial arrangements intended to provide a hedge
against a portion of the risks associated with such volatility. The Company continues to have exposure to such
risks to the extent they are not hedged.

The Company has used interest rate swaps that convert certain fixed rate debt to variable rate debt,
effectively hedging the change in fair value of the fixed rate debt resulting from fluctuations in interest rates.
At July 3, 2004, the Company had five interest rate swaps outstanding under which the Company pays a
variable interest rate and receives a fixed interest rate. The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities
and the total fair value (generally based on quoted market prices) of the Company’s debt outstanding at
July 3, 2004 (dollars in millions):

There- Total at Fair Value at

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 after July 3, 2004 July 3, 2004
Liabilities:
Fixed rate debt ............ $90 $ 1 $400 $476 $ 1 $305 $ 1,273 $1,365
Average interest rate ....... 7.2%
Floating rate debt.......... $0 $— $— $— $— S$— % 70 $ 70
Average interest rate ....... 2.5%
Interest Rate Swaps:
Fixed to variable........... $— $— $400 $300 $— $— § 700
Average pay rate .......... LIBOR+4.3%
Average receive rate ....... 8.8%

Many of the Company’s subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and sell products in currencies other than
their functional currencies. This subjects the Company to the risks associated with the fluctuations of foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging (offsetting receivables
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and payables) as well as by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments,
primarily forward foreign exchange contracts with maturities of less than sixty days. The Company adjusts all
foreign denominated balances and any outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair market value through the
consolidated statements of operations. Therefore, the market risk related to foreign exchange contracts is
offset by changes in valuation of the underlying items being hedged. The asset or liability representing the fair
value of foreign exchange contracts is classified in the captions “other current assets” or “accrued expenses
and other,” as applicable, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. A hypothetical 10% change in
currency exchange rates under the contracts outstanding at July 3, 2004 would result in an increase or
decrease of approximately $20.0 million to the fair value of the forward foreign exchange contracts, which
would generally be offset by an opposite effect on the related hedged positions.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data are listed under Item 15 of this Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosures

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)) as of the
end of the reporting period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on such evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective such that
material information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms relating to the Company.

During the last quarter of fiscal 2004, there have been no changes to the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information called for by Item 10 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company’s definitive
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on November 11, 2004.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information called for by Item 11 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company’s definitive
proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on November 11, 2004.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Equity Compensation Plan Information as of July 3, 2004

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights  Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
(a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders(3) oo e, 9,742,477(1) $20.33 7,393,877(2)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders . . — — 30,193
Total ..o 9,742,477 $20.33 7,424,070

(1) Includes 9,719,173 outstanding options and 23,304 stock incentive shares awarded but not yet delivered.

(2) Includes 6,292,551 options available for grant, 181,655 incentive shares not yet awarded and
919,671 shares authorized for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan but not yet allocated.

(3) Options assumed through acquisitions accounted for as purchases are excluded from (1) above. The
outstanding balance of acquired options was 294,070 (column (a)) with a related weighted average
exercise price of $38.48 (column (b)).

The Company has one equity compensation plan that has not been approved by shareholders — the
Outside Director Stock Bonus Plan. Under this program, non-employee directors are awarded shares equal to
$20,000 of Avnet Common Stock upon their re-election each year, as part of their director compensation
package. Directors may elect to receive this compensation in the form of common stock under the Outside
Director Stock Bonus Plan or they may elect to defer their compensation to be paid in common stock at a later
date. Shares are issued in January of each year and the number of shares is calculated by dividing $20,000 by
the average of the high and low price of the Common Stock on the first business day of January. The Board of
Directors established a reserve of 50,000 shares for this plan in November 2002. Aggregate shares issued
under the Plan totaled 3,724, 16,083 and 7,092 for fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The additional information called for by Item 12 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the
Company’s definitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held
on November 11, 2004.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information called for by Item 13 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on
November 11, 2004.
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Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information called for by Item 14 is incorporated in this Report by reference to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Stockholders anticipated to be held on
November 11, 2004.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

a. The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

1.

3.

Page
Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ................... 35
Avnet, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 3, 2004 and June 27,2003 ............ 36
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended July 3, 2004,
June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002 . ... ... 37
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended July 3,
2004, June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002 . ... ... 38
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended July 3, 2004,
June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002 . ... ... 39
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ............................ 40
Financial Statement Schedules:
Schedule IT (Valuation and Qualifying Accounts) for the years ended July 3,
2004, June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002 .. ... ... .. 66

Schedules other than that above have been omitted because they are not
applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or
notes thereto

Exhibits — The exhibit index for this Report can be found on pages 67 to 71.

b. Reports on Form 8-K

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company filed, or furnished, the following Current Reports
on Form §-K: (1) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of April 8, 2004 in which the Company
furnished, pursuant to Item 12, its press release providing preliminary guidance on its results for the
Company’s fiscal third quarter; (2) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of April 20, 2004 in
which the Company furnished, pursuant to Item 9, its press releases announcing its participation in the
upcoming JPMorgan Technology and Telecom Conference and announcing the date of the Company’s fiscal
third quarter earnings announcement and webcast; (3) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of
April 29, 2004 in which the Company furnished, pursuant to Item 12, its press release announcing the fiscal
third quarter financial results; (4) Current Report on Form 8-K bearing cover date of June 7, 2004 in which
the Company (i) filed, pursuant to Item 7, its Credit Agreement dated June 7, 2004 for the Company’s new
syndicated bank facility and (ii) furnished, pursuant to Item 9, its press release announcing the new

syndicated bank facility.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)
By: /s/ ROy VALLEE
Roy Vallee,
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

Date: September 7, 2004

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on September 7, 2004.

Signature Title
/s/ ROy VALLEE Chairman of the Board,
Roy Vallee Chief Executive Officer and Director
* Director

Eleanor Baum

* Director

J. Veronica Biggins

* Director

Lawrence W. Clarkson

* Director

Ehud Houminer

* Director

James A. Lawrence

* Director
Frank R. Noonan

* Director
Ray M. Robinson

* Director
Gary L. Tooker

/s/  RAYMOND SADOWSKI Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Raymond Sadowski Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

*By: /s/ RAYMOND SADOWSKI

Attorney-in-Fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Avnet, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of July 3, 2004 and June 27, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 3, 2004. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the financial
statement schedule for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 3, 2004, as listed in the
accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Avnet, Inc. and subsidiaries as of July 3, 2004 and June 27, 2003, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 3, 2004, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule for each of the years in the three-year period ended July 3, 2004, when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
August 6, 2004

35



AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003

(Thousands, except
share amounts)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1) ......... ..o, $ 312,667 $ 395,467
Receivables, less allowances of $78,410 and $84,042, respectively (Note 3) .. 1,743,962 1,471,806
INVENTOriES . . ..ottt 1,364,037 1,097,580
[ 111 P 63,320 161,237
Total Current assetsS .. ... ...ttt 3,483,986 3,126,090
Property, plant and equipment, net (Note 5)........... ... ... oiiinin.. 187,339 250,412
GoodWill (NOE 6) . .o\ o ettt e e 894,882 857,110
Other aSSEES .\ vttt e 297,444 265,939
Total aSSetS . ..ottt $4,863,651  $4,499,551

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Borrowings due within one year (Note 7) ...........ccoiiiiiiinnnenn.. $ 160,660 $ 187,656
Accounts payable . . ... .. 1,099,703 802,039
Accrued expenses and other (Note 8) ............. ..., 384,630 316,355
Total current liabilities . ........... ... .. 1,644,993 1,306,050
Long-term debt, less due within one year (Note 7) ........................ 1,196,160 1,278,399
Other long-term liabilities (Note 10) ......... .. i, 69,072 82,580
Total Habilities . .. ...t e 2,910,225 2,667,029

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 11 and 13)
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 1 and 12):
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,000 shares; issued

120,483,000 shares and 119,555,000 shares, respectively................. 120,483 119,555
Additional paid-in capital ........ .. ... .. . 567,060 568,010
Retained €arnings. . ... ...ttt 1,114,789 1,041,892
Cumulative other comprehensive income (Note 4) ...................... 151,195 103,207
Treasury stock at cost, 5,695 shares and 11,532 shares, respectively ......... (101) (142)

Total shareholders” equity .. ......out it 1,953,426 1,832,522

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ................coouiinn.... $4,863,651  $4,499,551

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended

July 3,
2004

June 27,
2003

June 28,
2002

(Thousands, except per share amounts)

SaleS o $10,244,741  $9,048,442  $8,920,248
Cost of sales (Note 17) ..ot 8,879,888 7,833,487 7,697,434
Gross Profit .. ..ot 1,364,853 1,214,955 1,222,814
Selling, general and administrative expenses ................. 1,106,988 1,095,461 1,167,776
Restructuring and other charges (Note 17) .................. 55,618 106,765 58,023
Operating income (10Ss) . ... ... 202,247 12,729 (2,985)
Other Income, NEt . ...ttt e 7,094 26,204 6,755
Interest eXpense . .. .....ooi it (94,573) (104,851) (124,583)
Debt extinguishment costs (Note 7) ........................ (16,370) (13,487) —
Income (loss) before income taxes ..............covvunenn.. 98,398 (79,405) (120,813)
Income tax provision (benefit) (Note 9) .................... 25,501 (33,289) (36,377)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting

PIINCIPIE . .ot 72,897 (46,116) (84,436)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (Note 6) .. — — (580,495)
Net income (10SS) ..ottt $ 72,897 $§ (46,116) $ (664,931)
Earnings (loss) per share before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle (Note 14):

Basic . ... $ 061 $ (039) $ (0.71)

Diluted ...... . $ 0.60 $ (0.39) $ (0.71)
Net earnings (loss) per share (Note 14):

Basic ........ . $ 061 $ (039) $ (5.61)

Diluted ... $ 0.60 $ (0.39) § (5.61)
Shares used to compute earnings (loss) per share (Note 14):

Basic . ... 120,086 119,456 118,561

Diluted ... .o 121,252 119,456 118,561

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years Ended July 3, 2004, June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002

Balance, June 29,2001 ..............
Netloss ..o
Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax of $11,155 (Notes 4 and
)

Comprehensive loss (Note 4) .........

Dividends, $0.15 per share
Stock option and incentive programs,
including related tax benefits of

$4,217
Balance, June 28,2002 ..............
Netloss ...
Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax of $19,988 (Notes 4 and
IS) oo

Comprehensive income (Note 4)......

Stock option and incentive programs,
including related tax benefits of $278

Balance, June 27,2003 ..............

Netincome . .....ooovnieiennnn...

Translation adjustments (Note 4)

Minimum pension liability adjustment,
net of tax of $1,651 (Notes 4 and
15) i

Comprehensive income (Note 4)......

Eurotronics contingent purchase price
(Note 2)

Stock option and incentive programs,
including related tax benefits of $756

Balance, July 3, 2004

Additional Cumulative Other Total
Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensive  Treasury Shareholders’

Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity

(Thousands, except per share amounts)

$117,840 $542,733  $1,770,645 $(56,297) $(331) $2,374,590
— —  (664,931) — — (664,931)
— — — 101,159 — 101,159
— — — (17,050) — (17,050)
(580,822)
— — (17,706) — — (17,706)
1,591 26,704 — — 153 28,448
119,431 569,437 1,088,008 27,812 (178) 1,804,510
— — (46,116) — — (46,116)
— — — 98,346 — 98,346
— — — (22,951) — (22,951)
29,279
124 (1,427) — — 36 (1,267)
119,555 568,010 1,041,892 103,207 (142) 1,832,522
— — 72,897 — — 72,897
— — — 45,470 — 45,470
— — — 2,518 — 2,518
120,885
— (15,000) — — — (15,000)
928 14,050 — — 41 15,019
$120,483 $567,060 $1,114,789 $151,195 $(101) $1,953,426

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (10SS) ...t e
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (Note 6) .. ...
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ......... ...
Non-cash and other reconciling items:
Depreciation and amortization. .......... ...,
Deferred taxes (Note 9) ... it
Non-cash restructuring and other charges (Note 17) ..........
Other, net (Note 15) ... i

Changes in (net of effects from business acquisitions and
dispositions):
Receivables ... ...
Inventories . .. ...t
Accounts payable .......... ...
Accrued expenses and other, net..............................

Net cash flows provided from operating activities............

Cash flows from financing activities:
Reduced drawings under accounts receivable securitization program
(NOtE 3) it e e
Issuance of notes in public offerings, net of issuance costs (Note 7)
Repayment of notes (Note 7) ...,
Proceeds from (repayment of) commercial paper and bank debt,

Payment of other debt, net ........ ... ... . ... . ... ... ..
Cash dividends ......... ... .. i,
Other, net. . ...

Net cash flows used for financing activities .................

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ....................
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment ... ....
Acquisitions of operations and investments, net (Note 2) .........

Net cash flows used for investing activities .................
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . ......

Cash and cash equivalents:
— (decrease) INCIease . .. ..ovvvv i eie ittt
—at beginning of year ....... ... .. .. .

—atendof year ....... ... ..

Additional cash flow information (Note 15)

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
$ 72,897 $ (46,116) $(664,931)
— — 580,495
72,897 (46,116)  (84,436)
64,540 88,839 103,879
(2,815) 21,606 10,828
31,409 55,344 77,961
47,649 49,784 43,279
213,680 169,457 151,511
(271,311) 140,656 433,863
(240,520) 387,081 552,621
285,386  (120,849) 45,168
77,414 75,533 (206,858)
64,649 651,878 976,305
—  (200,000) (150,000)
292,500 465,313 394,328
(444,245)  (379,197) (528,969)
55,974 (285,795) (517,924)
(504) (1,686) (4,482)
— — (26,546)
13,914 (474) 24,225
(82,361) (401,839) (809,368)
(28,623)  (34,169)  (87,173)
5,229 16,379 3,423
(50,528) (9,210)  (34,091)
(73,922)  (27,000) (117,841)
8,834 13,194 12,859
(82,800) 236,233 61,955
395,467 159,234 97,279

$ 312,667 $ 395,467 $ 159,234

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Principles of consolidation — The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Cash and cash equivalents — The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. At June 27, 2003, cash and cash equivalents include
$78,543,000 of cash restricted and held in an escrow account. This escrow balance consisted of a portion of the
proceeds from the Company’s issuance in February 2003 of $475,000,000 of 9%:% Notes due February 15,
2008, which was subsequently used to repay the remaining principal on the 6.45% Notes due August 15, 2003
and the 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003 at their respective maturity dates plus interest due through their
maturities (see Note 7). There were no remaining balances held in escrow as of July 3, 2004.

Inventories — Inventories, comprised principally of finished goods, are stated at cost (first-in, first-out) or
market, whichever is lower.

Investments — Investments in joint ventures and entities in which the Company has an ownership
interest greater than 50% and exercises control over the venture are consolidated in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. Minority interests in the years presented, which amounts are not material,
are included in the caption “accrued expenses and other” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
The Company invests from time to time in ventures in which the Company’s ownership interest is less than
20% and over which the Company does not exercise significant influence. Such investments are accounted for
under the cost method. The fair values for investments not traded on a quoted exchange are estimated based
upon the performance of the ventures historically, the ventures’ forecasted financial performance and
management’s evaluation of the ventures’ viability and business models. To the extent the book value of an
investment exceeds its assessed fair value, the Company will record an appropriate impairment charge (see
Note 17). Thus, the carrying value of the Company’s investments approximates fair value.

Depreciation and amortization — Depreciation and amortization is generally provided for by the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives for depreciation and
amortization are typically as follows: buildings — 30 years; machinery, fixtures and equipment — 2-10 years;
and leasehold improvements — over the applicable remaining lease term or useful life if shorter.

Long-lived assets — Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. The Company
continually evaluates the carrying value and the remaining economic useful life of all long-lived assets and will
adjust the carrying value and the related depreciation and amortization period if and when appropriate.

Goodwill — Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets
acquired. The Company has no other material identifiable intangible assets besides goodwill. The Company
adopted the provisions of the FASB’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 (“SFAS 142”),
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, effective June 30, 2001, the first day of the Company’s fiscal year 2002.
SFAS 142 requires that ratable amortization of goodwill be replaced with periodic tests for goodwill
impairment (see Note 6). The Company conducts its periodic test for goodwill impairment annually, on the
first day of the fiscal fourth quarter.

Foreign currency translation — The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into
U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, with the related translation gains and
losses reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income. Results of
operations are translated using the average exchange rates prevailing throughout the period. Transactions
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Avnet business unit that is party to the
transaction (primarily trade receivables and payables) are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

sheet date or upon settlement of the transaction. Gains and losses from such translation are recorded to the
consolidated statements of operations as a component of “other income, net.”

Income taxes — The Company follows the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax impact of differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in earnings in the period in which the new rate is enacted.

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been made for approximately $480,610,000 of cumulative
unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries at July 3, 2004 because those earnings are expected to be
permanently reinvested outside the U.S.

Self-insurance — The Company is primarily self-insured for workers’ compensation, and general, product
and automobile liability costs; however, the Company also has a stop-loss insurance policy in place to limit the
Company’s exposure to individual and aggregate claims made. Liabilities for these programs are estimated
based upon outstanding claims and claims estimated to have been incurred but not yet reported based upon
historical loss experience. These estimates are subject to variability due to changes in trends of losses for
outstanding claims and incurred but not recorded claims, including external factors such as future inflation
rates, benefit level changes and claim settlement patterns.

Revenue recognition — Revenue from product sales is recognized in accordance with Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (“SAB 104”), Revenue Recognition.
Under SAB 104, revenue from product sales is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collectibility
is reasonably assured. Generally, these criteria are met upon shipment to customers. Most of the Company’s
product sales come from product Avnet purchases from a supplier and holds in inventory. A portion of the
Company’s sales are shipments of product directly from its suppliers to its customers. In such circumstances,
Avnet negotiates the price with the customer, pays the supplier directly for the product shipped and bears
credit risk of collecting payment from its customers. Furthermore, in such drop-shipment arrangements,
Avnet bears responsibility for accepting returns of product from the customer even if Avnet, in turn, has a
right to return the product to the original supplier if the product is defective. Under these terms, the Company
serves as the principal with the customer, as defined under SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 and
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 99-19 (“EITF 99-19”"), Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus
Net as an Agent, and therefore recognizes the sale and cost of sale of the product upon receiving notification
from the supplier that the product has shipped.

In addition, the Company has more limited contractual relationships with certain of its customers and
suppliers whereby Avnet assumes an agency relationship in the transaction as defined by EITF 99-19. In such
arrangements, the Company recognizes the fee associated with serving as an agent in sales with no associated
cost of sales.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized ratably over the life of the contracts, ranging from
one to three years. Revenues are recorded net of discounts, rebates and estimated returns.

Comprehensive income (loss) — Comprehensive income (loss) represents net income (loss) for the year
adjusted for changes in shareholders’ equity from non-shareholder sources. Cumulative comprehensive
income (loss) items typically include currency translation, valuation adjustments for marketable securities and
the impact of the Company’s additional minimum pension liability, net of tax (see Note 4).

Stock-based compensation — The Company accounts for its stock based compensation plans using the
intrinsic value method initially prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 (“APB 257),
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. In applying APB 25, no expense is recognized upon grant of stock
under the Company’s various stock option plans, except in the rare circumstances where the exercise price is
less than the fair market value on the grant date, nor is expense recognized in connection with shares
purchased by employees under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (see Note 12).

No expense was recognized for options granted under the Company’s various stock option plans as the
options granted during the periods presented had exercise prices equal to the market value of the underlying
stock on the date of the grants. FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure — An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 123,
requires certain disclosures of the pro forma impact on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share as if a
fair value-based method of measuring stock-based compensation, as defined by the FASB’s Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, had been applied.

Reported and pro forma net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share are as follows:
Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands, except per share amounts)
Net income (loss), as reported .. ........................ $72,897  $(46,116) $(664,931)
Less: Fair value impact of employee stock compensation, net
Of 1K ot (9,668) (8,953) (10,459)
Pro forma net income (108s) ........... .. ... ... $63,229  $(55,069) $(675,390)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic —as reported .......... ... . $ 061 $ (039 $ (5.61)
Basic — pro forma . ................ii $ 053 $ (046) $ (5.70)
Diluted — as reported. . . ........uuur $ 060 $ (039) $ (5.61)
Diluted —proforma..................c.oiiiiiiai... $ 052 $ (046) $ (5.70)

The fair value of the stock options granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The weighted average assumptions used and the weighted average estimated fair values
of an option granted are as follows:

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,

2004 2003 2002
Expected life (years) .............. .. 6.1 6.0 6.0
Risk-free interest rate . ............. it 3.4% 3.2% 4.3%
Volatility . .. oo 46.9% 41.8% 40.7%
Dividend yield ....... .. ... .. . — — 0.4%
Weighted average fair value ................ ... ... . ... $9.07 $5.77 $8.34

Concentration of credit risk — Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to a concen-
tration of credit risk principally consist of cash and cash equivalents and trade accounts receivable. The
Company invests its excess cash primarily in overnight Eurodollar time deposits and institutional money
market funds with quality financial institutions. The Company sells electronic components and computer
products primarily to original equipment and contract manufacturers, including the military and military
contractors, throughout the world. To reduce credit risk, management performs ongoing credit evaluations of
its customers’ financial condition and, in some instances, has obtained insurance coverage to reduce such risk.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses, but has not experienced any material losses
related to individual customers or groups of customers in any particular industry or geographic area.

Fair value of financial instruments — The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments,
including cash and cash equivalents, receivables and accounts payable approximate their fair values at July 3,
2004 due to the short-term nature of these instruments. See Note 7 for further discussion of the fair value of
the Company’s fixed rate long-term debt instruments and see Investments in this Note 1 for further discussion
of the fair value of the Company’s investments in unconsolidated entities.

Accounts receivable securitization — The Company has an accounts receivable securitization program
whereby the Company may sell receivables in securitization transactions and retain a subordinated interest
and servicing rights to those receivables. The Company accounts for the program under the FASB’s Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140 (“SFAS 1407), Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities. The gain or loss on sales of receivables is determined at
the date of transfer based upon the relative fair value of the assets sold and the interests retained. The
Company estimates fair value based on the present value of future expected cash flows using management’s
best estimates of the key assumptions, including collection period and discount rates (see Note 3).

Derivative financial instruments — The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in
accordance with the FASB’s Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“SFAS 133”),
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities and
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.

Many of the Company’s subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and sell products in currencies other than
their functional currencies. This subjects the Company to the risks associated with the fluctuations of foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging (offsetting receivables
and payables) as well as by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments,
primarily forward foreign exchange contracts with maturities of less than sixty days. The Company adjusts all
foreign denominated balances and any outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair market value through the
consolidated statements of operations. Therefore, the market risk related to the foreign exchange contracts is
offset by the changes in valuation of the underlying items being hedged. The asset or liability representing the
fair value of foreign exchange contracts is classified in the captions “other current assets” or ‘“accrued
expenses and other,” as applicable, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has also entered into hedge transactions that convert certain fixed rate debt to variable rate
debt, effectively hedging the change in fair value of the fixed rate debt resulting from fluctuations in interest
rates. Those fair value hedges and the hedged debt are adjusted to current market values through interest
expense in accordance with SFAS 133, as amended (see Note 7).

The Company generally does not hedge its investment in its foreign operations nor its floating interest rate
exposures. The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes and monitors the financial stability and credit standing of its counter parties.

Fiscal year — The Company operates on a “52/53 week” fiscal year, which ends on the Saturday closest
to June 30™ (Friday closest to June 30™ in fiscal years 2003 and 2002). Fiscal 2004 contained 53 weeks as
compared with 52 weeks in fiscal 2003 and 2002. Unless otherwise noted, all references to “fiscal 2004 or any
other “year” shall mean the Company’s fiscal year.

Management estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
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financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto to conform to the current year presentation.

New accounting standards — In December 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46R
(“FIN 46R™), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, which is a revised Interpretation clarifying some of
the provisions of the original Interpretation No. 46 issued in January 2003. FIN 46R requires the consolidation
of variable interest entities (“VIEs”), as defined, based upon an assessment of a company’s investment
interests in the VIE as it relates to the interests of other investors in the VIE. FIN 46R also includes certain
disclosure requirements related to any VIEs. The application of FIN 46R is required for any VIEs or potential
VIEs commonly referred to as special-purpose entities for periods ending after December 15, 2003.
Application for all other types of VIEs is required in financial statements for periods ending after March 15,
2004. The adoption of FIN 46R did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2003, the FASB revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 132
(“SFAS 132”), Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. The revised
SFAS 132 requires additional disclosures about plan assets, benefit obligations, cash flows, benefit costs and
other relevant information related to pensions and other postretirement benefits. The disclosure requirements
of the revised SFAS 132 are effective for the Company for the fiscal year ended July 3, 2004 and such
disclosures are included in this filing (see Note 10).

2. Acquisitions and Dispositions:

During the last three fiscal years, the Company has completed one acquisition — the Gamma Optronik
AB acquisition completed during fiscal 2002. During the last three fiscal years, the Company has also acquired
remaining minority interests in certain majority-owned subsidiaries in addition to completing certain
contingent purchase price payments associated with businesses acquired in previous years.

During fiscal 2004, the Company completed a contingent purchase price payment associated with its
January 2000 acquisition of 84% of the stock of Eurotronics B.V., which went to market as SEI. The share
purchase agreement for this acquisition called for an additional payment of cash or common stock of the
Company if the Company’s share price did not reach $45.25 per share by January 2004. As a result, during the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company paid, in cash, the sum of $48,930,000 as settlement of the
Company’s final obligation from this acquisition. This payment resulted in an addition to goodwill of
$33,930,000 and a reduction of additional paid-in capital of $15,000,000, based upon an initial estimate of the
fair value of the stock guarantee incorporated into the purchase price accounting at the time of the Eurotronics
B.V. acquisition. During fiscal 2004, the Company also acquired the interest of a 9% minority shareholder in
the Company’s majority-owned Brazilian subsidiary, Avnet do Brasil, LTDA, as well as making contingent
purchase price payments associated with certain companies acquired in prior years. The acquisition of
minority interests and contingent purchase price payments discussed above required a total investment of
$50,528,000, all of which was paid in cash.

During fiscal 2003, the Company acquired the remaining 40% interest in Max India Ltd. as well as
remaining minority interests in various Israeli subsidiaries. The Company also completed contingent purchase
price payments associated with companies acquired in previous years including Sunrise Technology Ltd. and
Avnet Italy. The acquisitions of these remaining minority interests and the contingent purchase price
payments required a total investment of $9,210,000, all of which was paid in cash.

Also during fiscal 2003, the Company and the seller of the European operations of the VEBA Electronics
Group (acquired by the Company in fiscal 2001) resolved certain purchase price contingencies related to this
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acquisition. This resolution resulted in a refund to Avnet, totaling approximately $6,486,000, of a portion of
the amount paid by Avnet at the closing of the acquisition. The refunded purchase price was recorded as a
reduction of operating expenses in the fiscal 2003 consolidated statement of operations as the goodwill related
to the VEBA Electronics Group had been written off as a result of the transition impairment test performed
upon the adoption of SFAS 142 (see Note 6).

In fiscal 2002, the Company completed the acquisition of Gamma Optronik AB, as well as certain
contingent purchase price payments associated with businesses acquired in prior fiscal years (principally,
Sunrise Technology Ltd., RDT Technologies Ltd., PCD Italia S.r.l. and Matica S.p.A. and Savoir Technology
Group, Inc.), the acquisition of the remaining 20% interest in Kopp Electronics Limited and further
investment in an unconsolidated business. These transactions required a total investment of $34,091,000 (net
of $1,462,000 of cash on the books of Gamma Optronik AB at its acquisition date), all of which was paid in
cash. Gamma Optronik AB had sales totaling approximately $7,534,000 during its fiscal year immediately
preceding its acquisition. The historical results of operations of the acquired company would not have had a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations and therefore no unaudited pro forma
results are presented herein.

3. Accounts Receivable Securitization:

The Company has an accounts receivable securitization program (the “Program”) with two financial
institutions that allows the Company to sell, on a revolving basis, an undivided interest of up to $350,000,000
in eligible U.S. receivables while retaining a subordinated interest in a portion of the receivables. The eligible
receivables are sold without legal recourse to third party conduits through a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote
special purpose entity that is consolidated for financial reporting purposes. The Company continues servicing
the sold receivables and charges the third party conduits a monthly servicing fee at market rates; accordingly,
no servicing asset or liability has been recorded.

The Program qualifies for sale treatment under SFAS 140. As of July 3, 2004 and June 27, 2003, the
Company had no drawings outstanding under the Program and therefore there are no securitized accounts
receivable held by the third party conduits. Cash outflows for reduced drawings under the Program in the
consolidated statements of cash flows for fiscal 2003 and 2002 reflect the impact of a lower amount of accounts
receivable being sold, on a revolving basis, into the third party conduits during those fiscal years.

Expenses associated with the Program are as follows:

Years Ended
July 3, June 27, June 28,

2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
Losses on sales of receivables and discount on retained interest, net
Of SErviCing revenuUESs .. ........uuiiieeineeineeneennn.. $ 52 $1,244 § 8511
Program, facility and professional fees......................... 2,358 1,864 1,619
Total. ... $2,410  $3,108  $10,130

Losses on sales of receivables and discount on retained interest, net of related servicing revenues, are
recorded in interest expense while the other costs associated with the Program are recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. To the extent there
have been drawings under the Program, the Company has historically measured the fair value of its retained
interests at the time of a securitization using a present value model incorporating two key assumptions: (1) a
weighted average life of trade accounts receivable of 45 days and (2) a discount rate of 6.75% per annum.
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The Program agreement requires the Company to maintain minimum senior unsecured credit ratings in
order to continue utilizing the Program in its current form. These minimum ratings triggers are Ba3 by
Moody’s Investor Services or BB— by Standard & Poors. The term of the current Program agreement extends
to August 2005.

4. Comprehensive Income (Loss):

The following table illustrates the cumulative balances of comprehensive income (loss) items at July 3,
2004, June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002:

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
Cumulative translation adjustments, net .................. $188,678  $143,208 $ 44,862
Cumulative minimum pension liability adjustments, net .. ... (37,483) (40,001)  (17,050)
Total ... $151,195 $103,207 $ 27,812

5. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net:

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and consist of the following:

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003
(Thousands)

Land ... $ 5,126 $ 5,648
Buildings . . . ..o 76,098 78,689
Machinery, fixtures and equipment .......... ... ... ... 480,613 542,030
Leasehold improvements . .. ..ottt 34,073 34,299

595,910 660,666
Less — accumulated depreciation and amortization ................... 408,571 410,254

$187,339  $250,412

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property, plant and equipment was $58,644,000,
$80,338,000 and $93,121,000 in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

6. Goodwill and Impairment:

The amortization of goodwill was suspended effective with the beginning of fiscal 2002, the date the
Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 142. Under the transitional provisions of SFAS 142, the Company
identified and evaluated its reporting units for impairment of goodwill as of June 30, 2001 using a two-step
process. The Company engaged an outside valuation consultant to assist in this process. The first step was to
ascertain whether there was an indication that any of the Company’s goodwill was impaired. This was
accomplished by identifying the Company’s reporting units pursuant to the guidelines set out in SFAS 142 and
then determining the carrying value of each of those reporting units by assigning the Company’s assets and
liabilities, including existing goodwill, to each of those reporting units as of June 30, 2001. For the purpose of
this process, the reporting unit structure was defined as each of the three regional businesses (Americas,
EMEA and Asia) within each of the Company’s operating groups. The fair value of each reporting unit was
determined by using a combination of present value and multiple of earnings valuation techniques. Such fair
value was then compared with the carrying value of each reporting unit. As a result of completing the first step
of this process, it was determined that there was an impairment of goodwill related to the Avnet Electronics
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Marketing (“EM”) and Avnet Technology Solutions (“TS”) operations in both EMEA and Asia. The
Company identified no impairment of goodwill in the Americas region. In the second step of the process, the
implied fair value of the affected reporting unit’s goodwill was compared with its carrying value. This was done
in order to determine the amount of impairment; that is, the amount by which the carrying amount exceeded
the fair value. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $580,495,000, which was recorded
as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in fiscal 2002.

The magnitude of the transition impairment charge was significantly impacted by the timing of the
effective date of when the fair value analysis was performed and the designation of the reporting unit structure.
Since the Company adopted SFAS 142 on June 30, 2001, the Company was required to complete the fair
value analysis as of that date. Due to the difficult business and economic conditions at that date, which
severely impacted the market sectors in which the Company operates, and the uncertainty as to when such
conditions would materially improve, the fair value of the Company’s businesses was significantly less than it
might have been at other times. In other words, in a cyclical business, the timing of a valuation such as this
may be an important factor in the outcome of the valuation exercise. The reporting units with the most
significant impairment of goodwill were in Europe where the Company had not yet generated an acceptable
level of profits and cash flows. In addition, the defined reporting unit structure resulted in an impairment of
goodwill which included goodwill related to certain recent acquisitions that otherwise might not have been
impaired.

The Company’s annual impairment tests in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 yielded no additional impairments
to the carrying value of the Company’s goodwill.

The following table presents the carrying amount of goodwill, by reportable segment, for the periods
presented:

Avnet Avnet
Electronics Technology
Marketing Solutions Total
(Thousands)
Carrying value at June 28, 2002..............ccovivnn... $591,398  $253,199  $844,597
AdditionsS . . ... 9,540 — 9,540
Foreign currency translation .............. ... ... .. ..... 298 2,675 2,973
Carrying value at June 27,2003............ ... ... ...... 601,236 255,874 857,110
Additions . . .. ... 35,652 — 35,652
Foreign currency translation ............................ 286 1,834 2,120
Carrying value at July 3,2004 .......................... $637,174  $257,708  $894,882

Additions during fiscal 2004 related primarily to the contingent purchase price payment for Eurotronics
B.V. and other prior year acquisitions as well as acquisitions of minority interests (see Note 2).
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7. External Financing:

Short-term debt consists of the following:

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003
(Thousands)
Bank credit facilities ................ .. ... ... $ 70,096 $ 11,834
6.45% Notes due August 15,2003 ... ... . . i — 40,859
8.20% Notes due October 17,2003 .. ... ... .. — 29,944
67s% Notes due March 15, 2004 .. ... ., — 100,000
4.5% Convertible Notes due September 1,2004 ...................... 2,956 3,031
7% Notes due February 15,2005 ......... ... .. 86,633 —
Other debt due withinone year .............. ... .. iiiriinnenn.... 975 1,988
Short-term debt . ... ... . $160,660 $187,656

The bank credit facilities indicated above consist of various committed and uncommitted lines of credit
with financial institutions utilized primarily to support the working capital requirements of foreign operations.
The weighted average interest rates on the bank credit facilities at July 3, 2004 and June 27, 2003 were 2.5%
and 4.7%, respectively.

As of its acquisition of Kent Electronics Corporation (“Kent”) on June 8, 2001, Avnet assumed Kent’s
4.5% Convertible Notes due September 1, 2004 (the “Notes”). During fiscal 2002, virtually all holders of the
Notes exercised their “put” options by selling the Notes back to the Company. During fiscal 2004, the
Company repaid in cash $75,000 of the Notes. As of July 3, 2004, $2,956,000 in Notes remain outstanding.
The Company has the right to redeem all remaining Notes outstanding upon 30-day prior notice.

Long-term debt consists of the following:

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003
(Thousands)
7% Notes due February 15,2005 ....... ... ... ..., $ — $ 360,000
8.00% Notes due November 15,2006 ................... .. .. 400,000 400,000
9%.:% Notes due February 15,2008 ........... ... ... ..., 475,000 475,000
2% Convertible Senior Debentures due March 15, 2034............. 300,000 —
Other long-term debt. ... ... ... .. .. 7,597 7,237
Subtotal . . ... 1,182,597 1,242,237
Fair value adjustment for hedged 8.00% and 9°:% Notes............ 13,563 36,162
Long-term debt ........ ... ... $1,196,160  $1,278,399

In June 2004, the Company entered into an unsecured, three-year $350 million credit facility with a
syndicate of banks led by Banc of America Securities LLC and ABN AMRO Incorporated (the “Credit
Facility”’). The Company may select from various interest rate options, currencies and maturities under the
Credit Facility. There were no borrowings under the Credit Facility as of July 3, 2004.

The Credit Facility contains certain covenants with various limitations on debt incurrence, dividends,
investments and capital expenditures and also includes financial covenants requiring the Company to maintain
minimum interest coverage and leverage ratios, as defined. The Company was in compliance with all
covenants of the Credit Facility as of July 3, 2004.
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In March 2004, the Company issued $300,000,000 of 2% Convertible Senior Debentures due March 135,
2034 (the “Debentures”). The Debentures are convertible into Avnet common stock at a rate of
29.5516 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Debentures. The Debentures are only
convertible under certain circumstances, including if: (i) the closing price of the Company’s common stock
reaches $45.68 per share (subject to adjustment in certain circumstances) for a specified period of time;
(ii) the average trading price of the Debentures falls below a certain percentage of the conversion value per
Debenture for a specified period of time; (iii) the Company calls the Debentures for redemption; or
(iv) certain corporate transactions, as defined, occur. Upon conversion, the Company has the right to deliver
to the holder cash or a combination of cash and common stock, in lieu of solely common stock. The Company
may redeem some or all of the Debentures for cash any time on or after March 20, 2009 at the Debentures’
full principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. Holders of the Debentures may require the
Company to purchase, in cash, all or a portion of the Debentures on March 15, 2009, 2014, 2019, 2024 and
2029, or upon a fundamental change, as defined, at the Debentures’ full principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any.

The proceeds from the issuance of the Debentures, net of underwriting fees, were $292,500,000. The
Company used these proceeds to fund the tender and purchase of $273,367,000 of its 774% Notes due
February 15, 2005. The Company incurred debt extinguishment costs of $16,370,000 pre-tax, $14,215,000
after-tax and $0.12 per share on a diluted basis during fiscal 2004 related primarily to premiums and other
transaction costs associated with this tender.

During fiscal 2004, the Company also repaid in cash the $100,000,000 of 6/s% Notes that matured on
March 15, 2004.

In February 2003, the Company used the proceeds of $465,313,000, net of underwriting fees, from the
issuance in that month of the Company’s $475,000,000 of 9%:% Notes due February 15, 2008 (the
“9%.% Notes”) to redeem $159,141,000 of its 6.45% Notes due August 15, 2003 (the “6.45% Notes”) and
$220,056,000 of its 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003 (the “8.20% Notes). The excess proceeds after these
early redemptions were held in an escrow account and used to repay the remaining principal on the
6.45% Notes and 8.20% Notes at their respective maturity dates plus interest due through their maturities. At
June 27, 2003, the balance in this escrow account was $78,543,000. During the third quarter of fiscal 2003, the
Company incurred debt extinguishment costs of $13,487,000 pre-tax, $8,152,000 after-tax and $0.07 per share
on a diluted basis, related primarily to premiums and other transaction costs associated with the tender and
early redemption of the 6.45% Notes and the 8.20% Notes.

At June 27, 2003, the Company had a multi-year credit facility with a syndicate of banks led by Bank of
America that provided up to $350,000,000 in financing that was to mature on October 25, 2004. At June 27,
2003 and during fiscal 2004, there were no outstanding borrowings under this multi-year credit facility.
Because the Company did not expect to draw on the facility prior to its October 2004 expiration, the Company
terminated the facility in September 2003. The Company wrote-off the remaining unamortized deferred loan
costs associated with this facility, which amounted to $4,514,000 as of the date the facility was terminated
(see Note 17).

The Company has two interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $400,000,000 in order to hedge
the change in fair value of the 8.00% Notes due November 15, 2006 (the “8% Notes™) related to fluctuations
in interest rates. These contracts are classified as fair value hedges and mature in November 2006. The interest
rate swaps modify the Company’s interest rate exposure by effectively converting the fixed rate on the
8% Notes to a floating rate (4.5% at July 3, 2004) based on three-month U.S. LIBOR plus a spread through
their maturities. In July 2003, the Company entered into three additional interest rate swaps with a total
notional amount of $300,000,000 in order to hedge the change in fair value of the 9% Notes related to
fluctuations in interest rates. These hedges are also classified as fair value hedges and mature in February
2008. These interest rate swaps modify the Company’s interest exposure by effectively converting the fixed
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rate on the 9%:% Notes to a floating rate (7.8% at July 3, 2004) based on three-month U.S. LIBOR plus a
spread through their maturities. The hedged fixed rate debt and the interest rate swaps are adjusted to current
market values through interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. The
Company accounts for the hedges using the shortcut method as defined under SFAS 133, as amended. Due to
the effectiveness of the hedges since inception, the market value adjustments for the hedged debt and the
interest rate swaps directly offset one another. The fair value of the interest rate swaps at July 3, 2004 and
June 27, 2003 was $13,563,000 and $36,162,000, respectively, and is included in other long-term assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Additionally, included in long-term debt is a comparable fair value
adjustment increasing the total liability by these same amounts.

The Company had total borrowing capacity of $700,000,000 at July 3, 2004 under the Credit Facility and
the asset securitization program (see Note 3), against which $18,920,000 in letters of credit were issued under
the Credit Facility as of July 3, 2004, resulting in $681,080,000 of net availability. Although these issued
letters of credit are not actually drawn upon at July 3, 2004, they utilize borrowing capacity under the Credit
Facility and are considered in the overall borrowing capacity noted above.

Aggregate debt maturities for 2005 through 2009 and thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

200 L e $ 160,660
2006 . . e e 833
2007 .« 400,000
2008 . 475,853
20000 L 908
Thereafter . . ... 305,003

Total debt . ..o $1,343,257

At July 3, 2004, the fair value, generally based upon quoted market prices, of the 4.5% Convertible Notes
due September 1, 2004, the 77/:% Notes due February 15, 2005 and the 2% Convertible Senior Debentures due
March 15, 2034 are $3,017,000, $89,665,000 and $292,500,000, respectively. Additionally, the $175,000,000 of
the 9%.% Notes that are not covered by the fair value hedge discussed above had a fair value of $198,188,000
at July 3, 2004.

8. Accrued Expenses and Other:

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following:

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003
(Thousands)
Payroll, commissions and related accruals ........................... $130,140 $126,126
InSUrancCe. . ... e 8,518 11,373
Income taxes .. ....... ..o 88,936 31,640
Other . .o 157,036 147,216

$384,630  $316,355

50



AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

9. Income Taxes:

The components of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes are indicated in the table below. The
tax provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes results from temporary differences arising principally from
inventory valuation, accounts receivable valuation, net operating losses related to foreign operations, certain
accruals and depreciation, net of any changes to the valuation allowance.

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
Current:
Federal . ... ... ... . . . . e $ 861 $(60,425) $(77,608)
State and local.......... .. .. ... .. . 572 (7,855)  (10,396)
Foreign ... .o 26,883 13,385 40,799
Total current taxes . ..........cuuiiiiinenernnenennennn. 28,316 (54,895)  (47,205)
Deferred:
Federal . ... ... ... (8,835) 18,607 25,595
State and local. . ....... ... ... . . . . . . (1,720) 2,419 6,193
Foreign ... ..o 7,740 580 (20,960)
Total deferred taxes .............cooiiiiiiiininnnnn... (2,815) 21,606 10,828
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes.................. $25,501  $(33,289) $(36,377)

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes noted above is computed based upon the split of income
(loss) before income taxes from U.S. and foreign operations. U.S. income (loss) before income taxes was
$13,682,000, ($78,485,000) and ($100,708,000) and foreign income (loss) before income taxes was
$84,716,000, ($920,000), and ($20,105,000), in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

A reconciliation between the federal statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate is as follows:

Years Ended
July 3, June 27, June 28,

2004 2003 2002
Federal statutory rate ........... .. ..ot 350% (35.0)% (35.0)%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit ............... (1.1) (4.5) (2.8)
Impairment of investments in unconsolidated entities (Note 17) . ... — 0.7 10.2
Foreign tax rates, including impact of valuation allowances......... (8.9) (4.1) (3.3)
Other, net . ... 0.9 1.0 0.8
Effective tax rate . ...t 25.9% (41.9)% (30.1)%

Foreign tax rates generally consist of the impact of the difference between foreign and federal statutory
rates applied to foreign income (losses) and also include the impact of valuation allowances placed against the
Company’s otherwise realizable foreign loss carry-forwards. The additional valuation allowances recorded
during fiscal 2004 and 2003 are substantially offset by tax benefits related to certain foreign losses that are
deductible in the United States. The Company determines its valuation allowance through an evaluation of
relevant factors used to assess the likelihood of recoverability of the Company’s deferred tax assets.
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The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities, included primarily in other long-term
assets on the consolidated balance sheets, are as follows:

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003
(Thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Inventory valuation ............. ... .. iiiiiiiiiiiii... $ 12,060 $ 25,370
Accounts receivable valuation. .. .......... ... ... . .. . ... ... 16,845 18,963
Federal, state and foreign tax loss carry-forwards ................. 328,678 218,217
Various accrued liabilities and other .. .......................... 57,102 78,682
414,685 341,232
Less — valuation allowance ................ ... iiiiniininan.. (174,090)  (148,382)

240,595 192,850
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment. . . .. 7,544 9,051

Net deferred tax assets . ... ..ottt $ 233,051 $ 183,799

As of July 3, 2004, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$781,531,000, approximately $153,535,000 of which have expiration dates ranging from fiscal 2005 to 2019
and the remaining $627,996,000 of which have no expiration date. The Company also had U.S. federal net
operating loss carryforwards of approximately $69,470,000 as of July 3, 2004, which expire in fiscal 2024.

10. Pension and Profit Sharing Plans:
Pension Plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) covers substantially all
domestic employees. Employees are eligible to participate in the Plan following the first year of service with at
least 1,000 hours worked. The Plan provides defined benefits pursuant to a cash balance feature whereby a
participant accumulates a benefit based upon a percentage of current salary, which varies with age, and
interest credits. The Company uses June 30 as the measurement date for determining pension benefits for
each fiscal year.
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The following tables outline changes in benefit obligations, plan assets and the funded status of the Plan
as of the end of fiscal 2004 and 2003:

July 3, June 27,
2004 2003
(Thousands)

Changes in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligations at beginning of year............................ $215,344  $175,902

SEIVICE COSt. o ottt et e e 14,295 12,021

Interest CoSt ... ... 12,990 12,151

Actuarial (gain) 1oSS .. ...t (5,542) 30,967

Benefits paid . .. ... (14,279)  (15,697)

Benefit obligations at end of year..................... ... . ....... $222,808  $215,344
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year....................... $132,764  $141,130

Actual return on plan assets .. ... 14,984 4,872

Benefits paid . .. ... (14,279)  (15,697)

Contributions ... ... i 20,648 2,459

Fair value of plan assets at end of year............................ $154,117 $132,764
Information on funded status of plan and the amount recognized:

Funded status of the plan . ........... . ... ... ... i $(68,691) $(82,580)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss ............ .. ... ... ... .. ...... 67,281 72,153

Unamortized prior service credit ...............coiiiiiiii... (687) (1,008)

Accrued pension cost recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.... $ (2,097) $(11,435)

Pre-tax additional minimum pension liability recognized in

comprehensive income. .......... ... $(66,594) $(71,145)

Weighted average assumptions used to calculate actuarial present values of benefit obligations are as
follows:
2004 2003

DiSCount rate ... ... ot 6.50%  6.25%

Under the cash balance plan, service costs are based solely on current year salary levels; therefore,
projected salary increases are not taken into account.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net benefit costs are as follows:

2004 2003
DISCOUNT TALE . . o oottt et ettt e e e e e e e e e 6.25%  1.25%
Expected return on plan assets .............uiiiiii 9.00 9.50
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Components of net periodic pension costs during the last three years are as follows:
Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)

SEIVICE COSt .« v v vt ettt e e e e e e $ 14,295 $ 12,021 $ 11,647
Interest coSt ... ... .. .. 12,990 12,151 12,043
Expected return on plan assets .......................... (16,389)  (16,524)  (17,043)
Recognized net actuarial (gain) loss ..................... 734 — —
Amortization of prior service credit ...................... (321) (321) (321)
Net periodic pension Cost. .. .........ouureininnennenn.. $ 11,309 $ 7,327 $ 6,326

The Company expects to make contributions to the Plan of approximately $13,330,000 during fiscal 2005.
The Company may make additional voluntary contributions to the Plan during fiscal 2005. Benefit payments
are expected to be paid to participants as follows for the next five fiscal years and the aggregate for the five
years thereafter (in thousands):

200 $ 13,024
2000 . . 12,881
2007 o 12,977
2008 14,353
2000 L 16,338
2010 through 2014 . ... 110,690

The Plan’s assets are held in trust and were allocated as follows as of the June 30 measurement date for
fiscal 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003
EqUity SECUTIIHIES . ..o\ttt e e e e 59%  56%
Debt SECUTILIES . . . o\ vttt ettt et e e 34 38
Other investments, primarily money market funds ............... ... .. ... .. .... 7 6

The general investment objectives of the Plan are to maximize returns through a diversified investment
portfolio in order to earn annualized returns that meet the long-term cost of funding the Plan’s pension
obligations while maintaining reasonable and prudent levels of risk. The target rate of return on Plan assets is
currently 9.0%, which represents the average rate of earnings expected on the funds invested or to be invested
to provide for the benefits included in the benefit obligation. This assumption has been determined by
combining expectations regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio along with the historical
and expected distribution of investments by asset class and the historical rates of return for each of those asset
classes. The mix of equity securities is typically diversified to obtain a blend of domestic and international
investments covering multiple industries. The Plan assets do not include any material investments in Avnet
common stock. The Plan’s investments in debt securities are also diversified across both public and private
fixed income portfolios. The Company’s current target allocation for the investment portfolio is for equity
securities to represent approximately 70% of the portfolio with a policy for minimum investment in equity
securities of 56% of the portfolio and a maximum of 88%. The majority of the remaining portfolio of
investments are to be invested in fixed income securities.

Not included in the above tabulations and discussion are pension plans primarily of certain
non-U.S. subsidiaries, which are not material.
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401 (k) Plan

The Company has a 401 (k) plan that covers substantially all domestic employees. Employees are eligible
to participate in the 401 (k) plan on the first month after completing 90 days of service. The expense, including
matching contributions, relating to the 401 (k) plan for fiscal 2004 and 2003 totaled $1,819,000 and $276,000,
respectively. During fiscal 2002, the Company did not make any matching contributions and expenses
associated with the 401 (k) plan were $23,000.

11. Long-term Leases:

The Company leases many of its operating facilities and is also committed under lease agreements for
transportation and operating equipment. Rent expense charged to operations during the last three years is as
follows:

Years Ended
July 3, June 27, June 28,

2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
Buildings . ..... ... $41,043  $42,775  $43,506
Equipment . ... .. . 5,462 5,589 5,864

$46,505  $48,364  $49,370

The aggregate future minimum operating lease commitments, principally for buildings, in 2005 through
2009 and thereafter (through 2014), are as follows (in thousands):

20005 . $ 46,689
2006 . . 35,935
2007 e 27,508
2008 . 20,119
20000 14,992
Thereafter ... ... 32,331

Total . .o $177,574

12. Stock-based Compensation Plans:
Stock Option Plans:

In November 2003, the Company’s shareholders approved the 2003 Stock Compensation Plan (the
“2003 Plan”) and in January 2004, the Company registered 6,000,000 shares for grant under the 2003 Plan.
The entire 6,000,000 shares can be utilized to satisfy stock option exercises and no more than 2,000,000 of the
shares can be utilized for restricted stock awards.
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The Company has five stock option plans with shares available for grant at July 3, 2004:

Plan
1995 1996 1997 1999 2003
Minimum exercise price as
a percentage of fair
market value at date of
grant ................. 85% 100% 85% 85% 85%
Plan termination date .. ... August 31, December 31, November 19, November 21, September 18,
2005 2006 2007 2009 2013
Shares available for grant
at July 3, 2004 ......... 417,000 87,963 9,750 102,838 5,675,000

As applicable, the excess of the fair market value at the date of grant over the exercise price is considered
deferred compensation, which is amortized and charged against income as it is earned. The maximum term of
options granted under any of the plans is 10 years from the date of grant.

The following is a summary of the changes in outstanding options for the three years ended July 3, 2004:

2004 2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of
VAT . o vt 10,614,722 $21.37 9,555,698 $23.13 10,125,378 $23.20
Granted .................... 1,808,300 18.30 1,798,700 12.84 1,739,675 18.72
Exercised . .......oooiiii... (888,276)  17.18 (58,524) 976  (1,478,805)  17.56
Canceled or expired .......... (1,521,503) 23.49 (681,152) 24.81 (830,550) 24.78
Outstanding at end of year .... 10,013,243 20.87 10,614,722 21.37 9,555,698 23.13
Exercisable at end of year ... .. 6,031,657 23.12 6,810,029 23.35 5,784,988 24.03

The following information relates to options outstanding at July 3, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted
Number of Average Remaining Average
Options Exercise Contractual Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Price Life Options Price

$15.00 and below 1,665,472 $12.82 93 Months 461,023 $12.80
15.00 to 20.00 4,029,038 17.89 85 Months 1,750,981 17.78
20.00 to 25.00 2,304,086 2291 50 Months 2,080,911 22.86
25.00 to 30.00 1,174,913 28.28 74 Months 907,430 28.25
30.00 to 35.00 631,776 31.66 41 Months 624,746 31.65
35.00 and above 207,958 45.77 39 Months 206,566 45.84

10,013,243 6,031,657
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan:

In October 1995, the Company implemented the Avnet Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”).
Under the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees of the Company are offered options to purchase shares of
Avnet common stock at a price equal to 85% of the fair market value on the first or last day, whichever is
lower, of each monthly offering period. A total of 4,000,000 shares of Avnet common stock have been reserved
for sale under the ESPP, including an additional 1,000,000 shares reserved for the ESPP in fiscal 2004. At
July 3, 2004, employees had purchased 3,080,329 shares and 919,671 shares were still available for purchase
under the ESPP.

Incentive Stock:

The Company has an Incentive Stock Program wherein a total of 181,655 shares were still available for
award at July 3, 2004 based upon operating achievements. Delivery of incentive shares is spread equally over a
four-year period and is subject to the employee’s continuance in the Company’s employ. As of July 3, 2004,
23,304 shares previously awarded have not yet been delivered. Compensation expense associated with this
program was not material in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002. The current program will terminate on December 31,
2004. However, as discussed above, 2,000,000 additional shares registered under the 2003 Plan can be used for
restricted stock awards.

Outside Director Stock Bonus Plan:

The Company has a program whereby non-employee directors are awarded shares equal to $20,000 of
Avnet common stock upon their re-election each year, as part of their director compensation package.
Directors may elect to receive this compensation in the form of common stock under the Outside Director
Stock Bonus Plan or they may elect to defer their compensation to be paid in common stock at a later date.
Shares under this plan are issued in January of each year and the number of shares is calculated by dividing
$20,000 by the average of the high and low price of Avnet common stock on the first business day of January.
As of July 3, 2004, 30,193 shares are reserved for issuance under this plan.

Other Stock-based Compensation Information:

At July 3, 2004, there were 17,460,617 common shares reserved for stock options (including the ESPP)
and incentive stock programs (including the director plan).

13. Contingent Liabilities:

From time to time, the Company may become liable with respect to pending and threatened litigation,
taxes and environmental and other matters. The Company has been designated a potentially responsible party
or has become aware of other potential claims against it in connection with environmental clean-ups at several
sites. Based upon the information known to date, the Company believes that it has appropriately reserved for
its share of the costs of the clean-ups and it is not anticipated that any contingent matters will have a material
adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.
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14. Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding and excludes any potential dilution. Diluted earnings (loss) per share reflect potential dilution
from the exercise or conversion of securities into common stock.

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002

(Thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting
PrnCiple . ... ..o $ 72,897 $(46,116) $ (84,436)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (Note 6) ....... — —  (580,495)
Net income (loss) for basic earnings (loss) per share.............. 72,897  (46,116) (664,931)
Interest on 4.5% Convertible Notes due September 1, 2004 ......... 100 — —
Net income (loss) for diluted earnings (loss) per share ............ $ 72,997 $(46,116) $(664,931)
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares for basic earnings (loss) per share 120,086 119,456 118,561
Net effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock awards . ... .. 1,113 — —
Net effect of 4.5% Convertible Notes due September 1, 2004 . ...... 53 — —

Weighted average common shares for diluted earnings (loss) per
SATE . o 121,252 119,456 118,561

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting

PHNCIPIE . ..ot $ 061 $ (039 % (0.71)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ............... — — (4.90)
Net earnings (loss) per basic share ........................... $ 061 $ (0.39) $ (5.61)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting

PHNCIPIE . o o $ 060 $ (039)$ (0.71)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ............... — — (4.90)
Net earnings (loss) per diluted share.......................... $ 060 $ (039) % (5.61)

The 4.5% convertible notes are excluded from the computation of loss per share in fiscal 2003 and 2002 as
the effects were antidilutive. Shares issuable upon conversion of the 2% Convertible Debentures are also
excluded from the computation of earnings per share for fiscal 2004 because the contingent conditions for their
conversion have not been met (see Note 7).

The effects of certain stock options and restricted stock awards are also excluded from the determination
of the weighted average common shares for diluted earnings (loss) per share in each of the periods presented
as the effects were antidilutive or the exercise price for the outstanding options exceeded the average market
price for the Company’s common stock. Accordingly, in fiscal 2004, the effects of approximately
3,159,000 shares related to stock options are excluded from the computation above, all of which relate to
options for which exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the Company’s common stock.
In fiscal 2003 and 2002, the effects of approximately 10,682,000 and 9,705,000 shares, respectively, related to
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stock options and restricted stock awards, are excluded from the computation above of which approximately
10,467,000 and 3,891,000, respectively, related to options for which the exercise prices were greater than the
average market price of the Company’s common stock (see Note 12 for options outstanding and weighted
average exercise prices).

15. Additional Cash Flow Information:

Other non-cash and reconciling items consist of the following:
Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
Provisions for doubtful accounts ............. .. ... .. .. ...... $36,434  $46,664  $32,276
Other, net — primarily net periodic pension cost (Note 10) .. ... 11,215 3,120 11,003
Total ... $47,649  $49,784  $43,279

In fiscal 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized through other comprehensive income (loss) additional
minimum pension liabilities of $42,939,000 and $28,205,000, respectively, net of the related deferred tax
benefit of $19,988,000 and $11,155,000, respectively. In fiscal 2004, the Company reversed through other
comprehensive income (loss) a portion of the additional minimum pension liability amounting to
$4,169,000 net of the related deferred taxes of $1,651,000. These are non-cash reconciling items. See Note 10
for discussion of the Company’s pension plan.

Interest and income taxes paid (refunded) during the last three years were as follows:
Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Thousands)
INterest . .ot $105,773 $§ 95,306  $126,945
INCOME taXes . ..o vt it (59,073) (195,994) 40,109

16. Segment Information:

During the first quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company combined its Avnet Computer Marketing (“CM”)
and Avnet Applied Computing (“AC”) operating groups into one computer products and services business
called Avnet Technology Solutions (‘““TS”’). This combination was part of the Company’s continued efforts to
strengthen its market leadership position, streamline the business and further leverage cost synergies resulting
from the combination. In light of the similarities of the logistics operations and related functions of CM and
AC, the consolidation of certain of the units’ operating facilities, equipment and processes has yielded cost
savings while also stimulating new market opportunities for the combined group.

As a result of the formation of TS, Avnet Electronics Marketing (“EM”) and TS are the overall
segments upon which management primarily evaluates the operations of the Company and upon which it
based its operating decisions during fiscal 2004. Therefore, the segment data that follows reflects the two
segments subsequent to the formation of TS. Data for fiscal 2003 and 2002 has been restated to present
segment data on a consistent basis with fiscal 2004.

EM markets and sells semiconductors, interconnect, passive and electromechanical devices, and radio
frequency/microwave components. EM markets and sells its products to a diverse customer base spread across
end-markets including communications, computer hardware and peripheral, industrial and manufacturing,
medical equipment and military and aerospace. EM also offers an array of value-added services to its
customers such as supply-chain management, engineering design, inventory replenishment systems, connector
and cable assembly and semiconductor programming.
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TS markets and sells mid- to high-end servers, data storage, software and networking solutions, and the
services required to implement these solutions, to the value-added reseller channel and enterprise computing
customers. TS also focuses on the worldwide original equipment manufacturers (“OEM”) market for
computing technology, system integrators and non-PC OEMs that require embedded systems and solutions
including engineering, product prototyping, integration and other value-added services.

Years Ended

July 3, June 27, June 28,
2004 2003 2002
(Millions)
Sales:
Avnet Electronics Marketing .......................... $ 5,892.4 $4988.4 $4,841.9
Avnet Technology Solutions .. ......................... 4,352.3 4,060.0 4,078.3

$10,244.7  $9,048.4  $8,920.2

Operating income (loss):

Avnet Electronics Marketing .......................... $ 2125 $ 1019 §$§ 227
Avnet Technology Solutions .. ......................... 98.9 56.2 105.8
Corporate . ..ot (53.6) (38.6) (51.9)
257.8 119.5 76.6
Restructuring and Other Charges ...................... (55.6) (106.8) (79.6)
$ 2022 § 127 § (3.0)
Assets:
Avnet Electronics Marketing .......................... $ 3,489.0 $2,928.8  $2,940.8
Avnet Technology Solutions .. ......................... 1,243.8 1,174.3 1,402.0
Corporate . .....oii i 130.9 396.5 339.1

$ 4863.7 $4,499.6  $4,681.9

Capital expenditures:

Avnet Electronics Marketing .......................... $ 126 $ 202 $ 563
Avnet Technology Solutions .. ......................... 7.2 9.4 22.7
Corporate . ..ot 8.8 4.6 8.2

$ 286 $ 342 § 872

Depreciation & amortization expense:

Avnet Electronics Marketing .......................... $ 278 $§ 443 § 536
Avnet Technology Solutions .. ......................... 11.9 16.9 19.2
Corporate . ..ot 24.8 27.6 31.1

$ 645 $§ 888 § 103.9

Sales, by geographic area, are as follows:

AMETICAS . o ot $ 5,409.6 $5,028.7  $5,346.3
EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) .............. 3,380.2 2,997.1 2,874.4
Asia/Pacific ...... ... . . 1,454.9 1,022.6 699.5

$10,244.7  $9,048.4  $8,920.2

Assets, by geographic area, are as follows:

AMETICAS .« o v ottt et e e e $ 24577 $2,616.6 $2,892.4
EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) .............. 1,853.8 1,461.3 1,444.0
Asia/Pacific ........ .. .. .. 552.2 421.7 345.5

$ 4,863.7 $4,499.6  $4,681.9
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The Company manages its business based upon the operating results of its two operating groups before
restructuring and other charges (see Note 17). In each of the three years presented above, approximate
unallocated pre-tax restructuring and other charges related to EM and TS, respectively, were: $19,446,000 and
$29,920,000 in fiscal 2004; $84,238,000 and $21,315,000 in fiscal 2003; and $12,811,000 and $32,527,000 in
fiscal 2002. The remaining restructuring and other charges in each year relate to corporate activities.

Beginning in fiscal 2003, the Company has allocated its goodwill remaining after the transition
impairment charge recorded in accordance with the adoption of SFAS 142 (see Note 6) to the applicable unit
level in order to better evaluate and measure performance of its unit and segment operations. Asset balances
by group and by geography in fiscal 2002 have been reclassified to present this prior year on a consistent basis.

17. Restructuring and Other Charges:

Over the course of the past three years, the Company recorded a number of restructuring and integration
charges which generally related either to the reorganization of operations in each of the three major regions of
the world in which the Company operates, charges stemming from the acquisition and integration of newly
acquired businesses. During that period, the Company has also recorded other charges, generally taken in
response to business conditions at the time of the charge, including impairments recorded to certain of its
Internet-related investments. The following table summarizes these charges for the past three years, including
activity in the related accrued liability and reserve accounts subsequent to initially recording the charge:

Severance Facility IT-Related Impairment of
Costs Exit Costs Costs Other Investments Total
Balance at June 29, 2001.... §$ 20,266 $ 26,631 $ — $ 13,156 $ — $ 60,053
2002 activity............. 13,712 15,863 — 13,871 36,177 79,623
Amounts utilized ......... (27,208)  (21,467) — (24,115) (36,177) (108,967)
Balance at June 28, 2002. . .. 6,770 21,027 — 2,912 — 30,709
2003 activity............. 27,476 38,132 47,762 — — 113,370
Amounts utilized . ........ (28,882)  (24,891)  (46,199) (1,320) — (101,292)
Adjustments............. (462) (2,761) (850) (945) — (5,018)
Other, principally foreign
currency translation. . . .. 2,332 5,401 29 — — 7,762
Balance at June 27, 2003. . .. 7,234 36,908 742 647 — 45,531
2004 activity............. 14,691 15,643 19,759 5,525 — 55,618
Amounts utilized . ........ (18,235)  (32,411)  (19,351) (5,624) — (75,621)
Adjustments............. (1,043) 1,164 (210) — — (89)
Other, principally foreign
currency translation. . . .. 381 1,041 (68) — — 1,354
Balance at July 3,2004 .... $§ 3,028 § 22,345 § 872  $ 548 $ — $ 26,793

Total amounts utilized in fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002 consist of cash payments of $44,212,000,
$45,948,000 and $47,043,000, respectively and non-cash write-downs of $31,409,000, $55,344,000 and
$77,961,000, respectively. Additionally, fiscal 2002 amounts utilized include $16,037,000 in cash recoveries of
prior year acquisition integration costs discussed more fully below.

During the first and second quarters of fiscal 2004, the Company executed certain restructuring and cost
reduction initiatives designed to continue improving the profitability of the Company. These actions can
generally be broken into three categories: (1) the combination of CM and AC as discussed in Note 16;
(2) the reorganization of the Company’s global IT resources, which had previously been administered
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generally on a separate basis within each of the Company’s operating groups; and (3) various other reductions
within EM and certain centralized support functions.

Restructuring and other charges incurred during the first quarter of fiscal 2004 totaled $32,153,000 pre-
tax and $22,186,000 after-tax, or $0.18 per diluted share. The pre-tax charge consisted of severance costs
($9,393,000), charges related to consolidation of selected facilities ($10,848,000), write-downs of certain
capitalized IT-related initiatives ($6,909,000) and other items, consisting primarily of the write-off of the
remaining unamortized deferred loan costs associated with the Company’s multi-year credit facility termi-
nated in September 2003 as discussed in Note 7 ($5,003,000).

Severance costs resulted from workforce reductions of approximately 400 personnel completed during the
first quarter, primarily in executive, support and other non-customer facing functions in the Americas and
EMEA regions. Management also identified a number of facilities for consolidation primarily in the Americas
and EMEA regions. These facilities generally related to certain logistics and warehousing operations as well as
certain administrative facilities across both operating groups and at the corporate level. The charges related to
reserves for remaining non-cancelable lease obligations and write-downs to fair market value of owned assets
located in these facilities that have been vacated. Management also evaluated and elected to discontinue a
number of IT-related initiatives that, in light of recent business restructurings, no longer met the Company’s
return on investment standards for continued use or deployment. These charges related to write-offs of
capitalized hardware and software.

Restructuring charges incurred during the second quarter of fiscal 2004 totaled $23,465,000 pre-tax,
$16,351,000 after-tax, or $0.14 per diluted share. The charges consisted of severance costs ($5,298,000),
charges related to write-downs of owned assets and consolidation of selected facilities ($4,795,000), write-
downs of certain capitalized I1T-related initiatives ($12,850,000) and other items ($522,000).

Severance charges related to workforce reductions of approximately 120 personnel, the majority of whom
staffed warehousing, administrative and support functions primarily for facilities within TS EMEA operations
that were identified for consolidation as part of the combination of CM and AC. A smaller portion of these
charges also impacted operations in the Americas. The combination of CM and AC in EMEA also led to
charges related to reserves for remaining non-cancelable lease obligations and write-downs to fair market
value of owned assets located in the facilities that were vacated. The facilities primarily served in warehousing
and administrative capacities. Management also evaluated and elected to discontinue a number of IT-related
initiatives similar to the decisions also reached in the first quarter of fiscal 2004 as discussed above. These
charges related to the write-off of capitalized hardware and software. Lastly, the Company’s efforts to combine
CM and AC in EMEA resulted in the decision to merge the former CM EMEA operations onto the computer
systems that have historically been used in the AC EMEA business. The change in the use of this significant
asset of CM EMEA generated a need to analyze the group of long-lived assets within the former CM EMEA
operations for impairment. As a result of this analysis, the Company recorded an impairment charge to write-
down certain long-lived assets to their estimated fair market values. This charge, totaling $9,430,000, of which
$4,228,000 relates to the CM EMEA computer systems, is included in the facilities and IT-related charges
discussed above.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, as part of management’s ongoing analysis of the reserves for
various restructuring activities, the Company recorded adjustments to certain of its remaining reserves. The
adjustments occurred primarily in the Company’s EM and TS operations in EMEA and related to
adjustments to reduce excess severance reserves based upon revised estimates of statutorily required payouts
and recording of additional charges related to leased facilities due to modifications to sublease and termination
assumptions based upon ongoing market conditions. The Company also negotiated a favorable buyout of a
hardware and software maintenance contract, which resulted in the reversal of certain IT-related reserves.
These adjustments are reflected on the “Adjustments” line item in the above table for fiscal 2004.
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The combined charges recorded during fiscal 2004 totaled $55,618,000 pre-tax and $38,537,000 after-tax,
or $0.32 per diluted share.

During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company executed certain actions as part of its cost
reduction initiatives and, accordingly, recorded charges totaling $106,765,000 pre-tax, $65,750,000 after tax, or
$0.55 per diluted share. The charge consisted of severance costs ($21,700,000 pre-tax), charges related to the
consolidation of selected facilities ($37,359,000 pre-tax) and charges related to certain IT-related initiatives
($47,706,000 pre-tax).

These charges included severance costs and charges related to the consolidation of selected facilities,
taken in response to the business environment. During the second quarter of fiscal 2003, management
identified a number of facilities in each of the Company’s operating groups and its corporate functions, which
covered each of the Company’s geographic regions, to be consolidated into other facilities. The facilities were
identified in an effort to combine certain logistics and administrative operations wherever possible and
eliminate what would otherwise be duplicative costs. The charges related to reserves for remaining non-
cancelable lease obligations, write-downs of the carrying value of certain owned facilities to market value and
write-downs to fair market value of owned assets located in these leased and owned facilities that were
vacated. Additionally, workforce reductions at these and other facilities worldwide resulted in the termination
of approximately 750 personnel. The impacted personnel were primarily in non-customer facing positions. The
IT-related charges resulted from management’s decision during the second quarter of fiscal 2003 to
discontinue a number of IT-related initiatives that represented insufficient benefit to the Company if they were
kept in service or continued to be developed. These charges included the write-off of capitalized hardware,
software and software licenses.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the Company executed certain additional actions that resulted in
charges totaling $6,605,000 pre-tax. The incremental impact of these actions was substantially offset by
certain adjustments that the Company recorded, also in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, primarily relating to
certain of the reserves recorded from the restructuring activity in the second quarter of fiscal 2003. The new
charge activity, mostly for severance and consolidation of selected facilities, related to each of the Company’s
three operating groups and its corporate functions in the Americas and EMEA regions. The additional census
reductions totaled approximately 175 and resulted primarily from: (1) EM’s decision to combine its Cilicon
and RF and Microwave sales divisions; and (2) TS’s decision to reduce its participation in certain market
segments where profitability of the products in question have not yielded acceptable economic returns to the
Company. The fourth quarter adjustments to prior restructuring and other charges reflect changes in estimates
from the time the charges and applicable reserves were initially recorded, relating to: (1) reserves for
severance and for leases and other contractual commitments that were determined to be excessive during the
fourth quarter based upon payments made or still to be made and/or based upon more favorable than
anticipated sublease or lease buyout arrangements; and (2) an adjustment, based upon estimated sales price
net of costs to sell as derived from current market studies and comparable sales, of a portion of a write-down
that was recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2003 related to an owned facility that was vacated and
classified as held for sale during that quarter.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company recorded charges representing a write-down in value of
certain assets acquired in the fiscal 2001 acquisition of Kent Electronics Corporation (“Kent”) and certain
other charges taken in response to business conditions. The charge totaled $79,623,000 pre-tax ($21,600,000
included in cost of sales and the remaining $58,023,000 included as a component of operating expenses) and
$62,084,000 after tax, or $0.52 per share on a diluted basis.

The Kent-related items resulted from the acquisition of Kent being accounted for using the “pooling-of-
interests” method of accounting for the acquisition. These items related specifically to assets or obligations
that were on the books of Kent at the acquisition and, therefore, under the “pooling-of-interests” method,
these items that normally would have been reflected as adjustments to goodwill if the purchase method of
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accounting had been used were instead recorded to the Company’s consolidated statement of operations.
These items amounted to $29,734,000 pre-tax and relate primarily to: (1) write-downs to the value of
receivables considered uncollectible after the Company had exhausted efforts of collecting these amounts from
Kent’s pre-acquisition customers ($8,200,000 pre-tax); (2) excess and obsolete inventory, primarily for
customer-specific inventory held by Kent at the acquisition date that was subsequently determined, through
ongoing negotiations with the customer, to require a write-down to net realizable value ($21,600,000 pre-tax);
and (3) charges to record additional write-downs to approximate fair market value on held-for-sale properties
acquired in the Kent acquisition or to record lease reserves for non-cancelable lease obligations on properties
the Company committed to exit ($15,971,000 pre-tax); (4) net of approximately $16,037,000 pre-tax in cash
recoveries of certain charges recorded as part of the restructuring and integration charges taken in the fourth
quarter of 2001. The majority of these acquisition-related charges are included in “other” in the table
summarizing the Company’s restructuring activity for the three years ended July 3, 2004.

The remaining pre-tax charge recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, which amounted to
$49,889,000, included an impairment charge of $36,177,000 pre-tax to write-down certain of the Company’s
investments in unconsolidated Internet-related businesses to their fair market value and $13,712,000 pre-tax
for severance charges taken for workforce reductions, primarily in the Americas region, with more limited
reductions in EMEA and Asia, totaling approximately 850 individuals. The impairments recorded to the
Company’s Internet-related investments are considered capital losses for tax purposes and were therefore only
deductible to the extent the Company had available capital gains. At that time, there were no capital gains,
available or forecasted in the foreseeable future, to offset these losses. Therefore, the Company generally did
not record a tax benefit for these losses.

As of July 3, 2004, the Company’s total remaining reserves for restructuring and other related activities
totaled $26,793,000. Of this balance, $3,028,000 relates to remaining severance reserves, the majority of which
the Company expects to utilize by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2006. Reserves for $22,345,000 relate to
reserves for contractual lease commitments, substantially all of which the Company expects to utilize by the
end of fiscal 2007. The IT-related and other reserves, which total $1,420,000, relate primarily to remaining
contractual commitments, the majority of which the Company expects to utilize by the end of fiscal 2005.

18. Summary of Quarterly Results (Unaudited):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
(Millions, except per share amounts)

2004
Sales .................. $2,407.7 $2,554.4 $2,639.6 $2,643.0 $10.244.7
Gross profit............. 309.1 329.2 358.6 368.0 1,364.9
Net income (loss) ....... (11.4) (a) 8.9 (b) 26.7(c¢) 48.7 72.9(a) (b) (¢)
Diluted earnings (loss)

pershare ............. (0.09) (a) 0.07 (b) 0.22(c) 0.40 0.60(a) (b) (¢)
2003
Sales .................. $2,173.9 $2,346.6 $2,340.5 $2,187.4 $ 9,048.4
Gross profit............. 297.6 315.6 307.1 294.7 1,215.0
Net income (loss) ....... (0.5) (58.6) (d) 1.5(e) 11.5 (46.1)(d) (e)
Diluted earnings (loss)

pershare ............. — (0.49) (d) 0.01(e) 0.10 (0.39)(d) (e)

(a) Includes the impact of restructuring and other charges recorded in connection with cost cutting initiatives
and the combination of the Avnet Computer Marketing (“CM”) and Avnet Applied Computing
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(“AC”) operating groups into one operating group now called Avnet Technology Solutions (“TS’’). The
charges amounted to $32.2 million pre-tax (all of which was included as part of operating expenses),
$22.2 million after-tax and $0.18 per share on a diluted basis for the first quarter and fiscal year 2004. See
Note 17.

Includes the impact of additional restructuring and other charges recorded in connection with cost cutting
initiatives and the combination of CM and AC. The charges amounted to $23.4 million pre-tax (all of
which was included as part of operating expenses), $16.4 million after-tax and $0.14 per share on a
diluted basis for the second quarter and fiscal year 2004. See Note 17.

Includes the impact of debt extinguishment costs associated with the Company’s cash tender offer
completed during the third quarter for $273.4 million of the 77%4% Notes due February 15, 2005. These
charges amounted to $16.4 million pre-tax, $14.2 million after-tax and $0.12 per share on a diluted basis
for the third quarter and fiscal year 2004. See Note 7.

Includes the impact of restructuring and other charges associated with the Company’s continuing cost
reduction initiatives. The charges related to (a) severance for workforce reductions, (b) reserves for non-
cancelable lease obligations, write-downs of the carrying value of owned facilities and write-downs of
owned assets located in these leased and owned facilities, and (c) costs related to write-offs of certain IT-
related initiatives. The charges amounted to $106.8 million pre-tax (all of which is included as part of
operating expenses), $65.8 million after-tax and $0.55 per share on a diluted basis for the second quarter
and fiscal year 2003. See Note 17.

Includes the impact of debt extinguishment costs associated with the Company’s cash tender offers and
repurchases completed during the third quarter of fiscal 2003 for $159.0 million of its 6.45% Notes due
August 15, 2003 and $220.1 million of its 8.20% Notes due October 17, 2003. These charges amounted to
$13.5 million pre-tax, $8.2 million after-tax and $0.07 per share on a diluted basis for the third quarter
and fiscal year 2003. See Note 7.
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SCHEDULE II
AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Years Ended July 3, 2004, June 27, 2003 and June 28, 2002

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other Accounts- Deductions- End of
Description Period Expenses Describe Describe Period
(Thousands)
Fiscal 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 84,042 $36,434 \J— $42,066(a) $ 78,410
Valuation allowance on foreign
loss carryforwards (Note 9) ... 148,382 25,708 — — 174,090
Fiscal 2003
Allowance for doubtful accounts 99,073 46,664 — 61,695(a) 84,042
Valuation allowance on foreign
loss carryforwards (Note 9) ... 120,671 27,711 — — 148,382
Fiscal 2002
Allowance for doubtful accounts 65,204 32,276 977(b) 13,278 (a) 99,073
13,894 (¢)

Valuation allowance on foreign
loss carryforwards (Note 9) ... 49,783 70,888 — — 120,671

(a) Uncollectible accounts written off.
(b) Recovery of amounts previously written off or reserved.

(c¢) Reserves recorded primarily through fiscal 2002 restructuring charges (see Note 17) and subsequently
classified as reserves for doubtful accounts in fiscal 2002.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 12, 2001, Exhibit 3(i).

By-laws of the Company, effective November 6, 2003 (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November 14, 2003 Exhibit 3).

Indenture dated as of October 1, 2000, between the Registrant and Bank One Trust Company, N.A.,
as Trustee, providing for the issuance of Debt Securities in one or more series (incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2003, Exhibit 4.1).
Officers’ Certificate dated February 4, 2003, providing for the 9%.% Notes, including (a) the form of
the Notes, and (b) the Pricing Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 31, 2003, Exhibit 4.2).

Indenture dated as of May 5, 2004, by and between the Company and JP Morgan Trust Company,
National Association (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated March 8, 2004, Exhibit 4.1).

Officers’ Certificate dated March 5, 2004, establishing the terms of the Debentures (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 8, 2004,
Exhibit 4.2).

Note: The total amount of securities authorized under any other instrument that defines the rights of
holders of Company’s long-term debt does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Therefore, these instruments are not required to be filed as
exhibits to this Report. The Company agrees to furnish copies of such instruments to the Commission
upon request.

Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements

Employment Agreement dated June 29, 1998 between the Company and David R. Birk (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 18, 1998,
Exhibit 99.3).

Employment Agreement dated June 29, 1998 between the Company and Raymond Sadowski
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Septem-
ber 18, 1998, Exhibit 99.4).

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2000 and Change of Control Agreement between the
Company and Andrew S. Bryant (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated May 14, 2001, Exhibit 99C).

Employment Agreement dated May 1, 2000 between the Company and Richard Hamada (incorpo-
rated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002,
Exhibit 10B).

Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2002 and Change of Control Agreement between the
Company and Edward B. Kamins (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10C).

Employment Agreement dated June 29, 2002 between the Company and Roy Vallee (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002,
Exhibit 10D).

Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and David R. Birk
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99D).

Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and Ray Sadowski
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 14,
2001, Exhibit 99H).

Change of Control Agreement dated September 22, 2003 between the Company and Richard
Hamada (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
November 14, 2003, Exhibit 10).
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10.24
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Exhibit

Avnet 1984 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 2-96800, Exhibit 4-B).

Avnet 1988 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 33-29475, Exhibit 4-B).

Avnet 1990 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992, Exhibit 10E).

Avnet 1995 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K dated February 12, 1996, Exhibit 10).

Avnet 1996 Incentive Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-17271, Exhibit 99).

Amended and Restated Avnet 1997 Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 6, 1999, Exhibit 10).

1994 Avnet Incentive Stock Program (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Registra-
tion Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-00129, Exhibit 99).

Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directors (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 23, 1997, Exhibit 99.2).

Amendment to Stock Bonus Plan for Outside Directors dated November 8, 2002. Directors
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Septem-
ber 15, 2003 Exhibit 10G).

Retirement Plan for Outside Directors of Avnet, Inc., effective July 1, 1993 (incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1992,
Exhibit 10i).

Amended and Restated Avnet, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside Directors (incorporated

herein by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8, Registration
No. 333-112062, Exhibit 10.1).

Avnet 1999 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-55806, Exhibit 99).

Avnet, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Proxy
Statement dated October 7, 2002).

Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s Proxy Statement dated October 1, 2003).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333-112057, Exhibit 10.1).

Change of Control Agreement dated as of March 1, 2001 between the Company and Harley Feldberg
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 8,
2004, Exhibit 10.1

Form of Indemnity Agreement. The Company enters into this form of agreement with each of its
directors and officers (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10.2).

Avnet, Inc. 2003 Stock Compensation Plan — form stock option agreements (incorporated by
reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10.3).
(a) Nongqualified stock option agreement

(b) Incentive stock option agreement

Form option agreements for stock option plans (incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 10.4).

(a) Non-Qualified stock option agreement for 1999 Stock Option Plan

(b) Incentive stock option agreement for 1999 Stock Option Plan

(c¢) Incentive stock option agreement for 1996 Stock Option Plan

(d) Non-Qualified stock option agreement for 1995 Stock Option Plan
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10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41
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Exhibit

Bank Agreements

Credit Agreement (364-day) dated as of October 25, 2001 among the Company and certain other
Borrowers as the Borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent and Documentation
Agent, Credit Suisse First Boston, First Union National Bank, The Bank of Nova Scotia, and ABN
AMRO Bank, N.V., as Joint Syndication Agents, the Other Lenders and Banc of America Securities
LLC, and Credit Suisse First Boston as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002,
Exhibit 10F).

First Amendment, dated as of March 29, 2002, to the Credit Agreement (364-Day) in 10FF above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K dated Septem-
ber 26, 2002, Exhibit 10G).

Credit Agreement (Multi-Year) dated as of October 25, 2001 among Avnet, Inc. and Certain Other
Borrowers as the Borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Documentation Agent,
Letter of Credit Issuer and Swing Line Lender, Credit Suisse First Boston, First Union National
Bank, The Bank of Nova Scotia, and ABN AMRO Bank N.V., as Joint Syndication Agents, the
other Lenders party thereto and Banc of America Securities LLC, and Credit Suisse First Boston as
Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Managers (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10H).

First Amendment, dated as of March 29, 2002, to the Credit Agreement (Multi-Year) in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form §-K dated Septem-
ber 26, 2002, Exhibit 10I).

Second Amendment, dated as of October 10, 2002, to the Credit Agreement (Multi-Year) in 10.31
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
October 10, 2002, Exhibit 10A).

Third Amendment, dated as of November 23, 2002, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
December 27, 2002, Exhibit 10B).

Fourth Amendment, dated as of December 9, 2002, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
December 27, 2002, Exhibit 10C).

Fifth Amendment, dated as of December 12, 2002, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
December 27, 2002, Exhibit 10D).

Sixth Amendment, dated as of December 13, 2002, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated
December 27, 2002, Exhibit 10E).

Seventh Amendment, dated as of January 30, 2003, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated March 28,
2003, Exhibit 10A).

Eighth Amendment, dated as of March 28, 2003, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated March 28,
2003, Exhibit 10B).

Ninth Amendment, dated as of July 2, 2003, to the Credit Agreement in 10.31 above (incorporated
herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 15, 2003,
Exhibit 10B).

Termination and Release Amendment, dated as of September 8, 2003, to the Credit Agreement in
10.31 above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10F).

Securitization Program

(a) Receivables Sale Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001 between Avnet, Inc., as Originator and

Avnet Receivables Corporation as Buyer (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10J).
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Exhibit

(b) Amendment No. 1, dated as of February 6, 2002, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.42(a)
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10K).

(c) Amendment No. 2, dated as of June 26, 2002, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.42(a) above
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Septem-
ber 26, 2002, Exhibit 10L).

(d) Amendment No. 3, dated as of November 25, 2002, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.42(a)
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10B).

(e) Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 12, 2002, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.42(a)
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10E).

(f) Amendment No. 5, dated as of August 15, 2003, to Receivables Sale Agreement in 10.42(a)
above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10C).

(g) Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of February 6, 2002 among
Avnet Receivables Corporation, as Seller, Avnet, Inc., as Servicer, the Companies, as defined therein,
the Financial Institutions, as defined therein, and Bank One, NA (Main Office Chicago) as Agent
(incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated Septem-
ber 26, 2002, Exhibit 10M).*

(h) Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 26, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.42(g) above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 26, 2002, Exhibit 10N).

(i) Amendment No. 2, dated as of November 25, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.42(g) above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10A).

(j) Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 9, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.42(g) above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10C).

(k) Amendment No. 4, dated as of December 12, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.42(g) above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 17, 2002, Exhibit 10D).

(I) Amendment No. 5, dated as of June 23, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.42(g) above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10D).

(m) Amendment No. 6, dated as of August 15, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Receivables
Purchase Agreement in 10.42(g) above (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 15, 2003, Exhibit 10E).

Credit Agreement, dated June 7, 2004, by and among Avnet, Inc. and Avnet Logistics U.S., L.P., as
Borrowers, the Lenders party thereto, and Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent, Swing
Line Lender and L/C Issuer. (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated June 8, 2004, Exhibit 99.

List of subsidiaries of the Company (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 21).

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Powers of Attorney (incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated September 8, 2004, Exhibit 24).

Certification by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officer, under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Financial Officer, under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
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32.1*** Certification by Roy Vallee, Chief Executive Officer, under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002.
32.2*** Certification by Raymond Sadowski, Chief Financial Officer, under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibit

* This Exhibit does not include the Exhibits and Schedules thereto as listed in its table of contents. The
Company undertakes to furnish any such Exhibits and Schedules to the Securities and Exchange

Commission upon its request.
** Filed herewith.
*** Furnished herewith.
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